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&

Department of the Treasury
Intemal Revenue Service

benefit trust or private foundation)

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except black lung

OMB No 1545-0047

A For the

B Check If applicable
I_ Address change

|_ Name change
I_ Initial return

|_ Terminated

I_ Amended

|_ Application pending

2012 calendar year, or tax year beginning 01-01-2012

2012

I The organization may have to use a copy of this return to satisfy state reporting requirements Open to Public
9 Y Py porting req Inspection

, 2012, and ending_j 12-31-2012

C Name of organization
OX-BOW
3435 RUPPRECHT WAY

38-1081760

Doing Business As

D Employer identification number

Number and street (or P O box if mail i1s not delivered to street address)| Room/suite

PO BOX 216

E Telephone number

return City or town, state or country, and ZIP + 4

SAUGATUCK, MI 49453

F Name and address of principal officer
ELIZABETH CHODOS

I Tax-exempt status

¥ s501(c)(3) [~ 501(c)( )M (imsertno) [ 4947(a)(1) or [ 527

J Website: » WWW OX-BOW ORG

(312)629-6160

G Gross recelpts $ 2,254,346

H(a) Is this a group return for

affiliates?

[T Yes ¥ No

H(b) Are all affiliates included?] Yes[ No
If "No," attach a list (see Instructions)

H(c) Group exemption number &

K Form of organization |7 Corporation |_ Trust |_ Association |_ Other =

L Year of formation 1972

M State of legal domicile MI

Summary

1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activities
CONDUCT ART SCHOOL AND ARTISTS IN RESIDENCY PROGRAM
g
=
§ 2 Check this box M If the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets
3
w5 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a) 3 16
E 4 Number of Independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b) 4 16
E 5 Total number of Individuals employed in calendar year 2012 (Part V, line 2a) 5 43
E 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate If necessary) 6 40
7aTotal unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C), line 12 7a 0
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, line 34 7b
Prior Year Current Year
8 Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line 1h) 286,152 362,785
% 9 Program service revenue (Part VIII, line 2g) 1,131,879 1,245,821
% 10 Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), ines 3,4, and 7d ) 72,217 31,913
= 11 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), ines 5,6d, 8¢, 9c, 10c,and 11e) 165,124 84,583
12 Total revenue—add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line
12) 1,655,372 1,725,102
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3) 212,088 235,674
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4) 0
15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines
$ 5-10) 671,322 655,447
% 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11e) 0
E b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) »-150,975
17 Other expenses (PartIX, column (A), lines 11a-11d,11f-24e) 1,025,803 1,060,942
18 Total expenses Add lines 13-17 (must equal PartIX, column (A), line 25) 1,909,213 1,952,063
19 Revenue less expenses Subtractline 18 from line 12 -253,841 -226,961
wd Beginning of Current End of Year
E§ Year
33 20 Total assets (Part X, line 16) 8,118,540 7,770,633
EE 21 Total habilities (Part X, line 26) 762,182 730,334
ZIE 22 Net assets or fund balances Subtractline 21 from line 20 7,356,358 7,040,299

Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of
my knowledge and belief, it Is true, correct, and complete Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which
preparer has any knowledge

’ Hokk Rk K |2013—09—11
Sign Signature of officer Date
Here ELIZABETH CHODOS EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Type or prnint name and title
Pnnt/Type preparer's name Preparer's signature Date Check |_ I PTIN

P d DEBRA CLARK-MILLER 2013-09-16 self-employed

ai Fim's name M DELONG & BROWER PC Firm's EIN b=
Preparer
Use Only Firm's address ® 238 HOOVER BLVD SUITE 10 Phone no (616) 396-0500

HOLLAND, MI 49423

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see Iinstructions)

[“Yes[ No

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.

Cat No 11282Y

Form 990 (2012)



Form 990 (2012) Page 2
m Statement of Program Service Accomplishments

Check If Schedule O contains a response to any question inthis Part III . . . . .+ + & W« « W« « « . . I

1

Briefly describe the organization’s mission

CONDUCT ART SCHOOL AND ARTISTS IN RESIDENCY PROGRAM

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on
the prior Form 990 0r 990-EZ? . . + v & o« o« wwe e e e e e [T Yes ¥ No
If “*Yes,” describe these new services on Schedule O
3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program
SEIVICES? v v v e e e e e e e e e e [~ Yes [ No
If “*Yes,” describe these changes on Schedule O
4 Describe the organization’s program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by
expenses Section 501(c)(3)and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others,
the total expenses, and revenue, If any, for each program service reported
4a (Code ) (Expenses $ 1,532,281 including grants of $ 235,674 ) (Revenue $ )
OX-BOW IS A SCHOOL OF ART AND ARTISTS' RESIDENCY FOR EXPERIENCED AND ASPIRING ARTISTS EACH YEAR OVER 500 ARTISTS MAKE THEIR WAY TO OUR 115
ACRE CAMPUS TO DELVE INTO THE ARTISTIC PROCESS AT OX-BOW, ARTISTS ENJOY EXTREME FOCUS, A COMMITTED COMMUNITY OF PEERS, INNOVATIVE AND
RIGOROUS INTENSIVES AND AN UNPARALLELED NATURAL ENVIRONMENT OX-BOW'S ART ON THE MEADOW PROGRAM OFFERS 4 DAY WORKSHOPS THROUGHOUT
THE SUMMER FOR CHILDREN, TEENS AND ADULTS THE PROGRAM IS A WAY FOR LOCAL RESIDENTS AND SHORT TERM VISITORS TO ENGAGE IN LIFE AND
ARTMAKING AT OX-BOW
4b (Code ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )
4c (Code ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )
4d Other program services (Describe in Schedule O )
(Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )
4e Total program service expenses & 1,532,281

Form 990 (2012)



Form 990 (2012)
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12a

13

14a

15

16

17

18

19

20a

Part III

Page 3
Checklist of Required Schedules

Yes No
Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3)or4947(a)(1) (otherthan a private foundation)? If "Yes,” Yes
complete Schedule A 1
Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors (see instructions)? b 2 Yes
Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to No
candidates for public office? If "Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part I 3
Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage In lobbying activities, or have a section 501 (h) No
election in effect during the tax year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part IT 4
Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501 (c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues,
assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-197? If "Yes,” complete Schedule C, 5 No
Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the
right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts 1n such funds or accounts? If "Yes,” complete
Schedule D, Part I 6 No
Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part I] 7 No
Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If "Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Part 111 & . 8 No
Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21 for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a
custodian for amounts not listed in Part X, or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt
negotiation services? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part 1V 9 No
Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in temporarily restricted endowments,| 10 Yes
permanent endowments, or quasi-endowments? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part
If the organization’s answer to any of the following questions Is "Yes," then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VII,
VIII,IX, or X as applicable
Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10?
If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part VI.%&) 11a | YeS
Did the organization report an amount for investments—other securities in Part X, line 12 that 1s 5% or more of
Its total assets reported In Part X, line 16? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part VI 11b No
Did the organization report an amount for investments—program related in Part X, line 13 that 1s 5% or more of
Its total assets reported In Part X, line 16? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part VIIIE . 11c No
Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that 1s 5% or more of its total assets
reported in Part X, line 162 If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part X P e e 11d No
Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, PartXE 11e | Yes
Did the organization’s separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that 11f | ves
addresses the organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If "Yes,” complete
Schedule D, Part
Did the organization obtain separate, Independent audited financial statements for the tax year?
If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Parts XI and XII 12a | Yes
Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If 12b No
"Yes,” and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI and XII is optional
Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(1n)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule E &) 13 Yes
Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? 14a No
Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising,
business, iInvestment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments
valued at $100,000 or more? If "Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts I and IV . 14b No
Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or assistance to any
organization or entity located outside the United States? If "Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts II and IV 15 No
Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or assistance to
individuals located outside the United States? If "Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts III and IV . 16 No
Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part 17 No
IX, column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If "Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part I (see instructions)
Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part
VIII, ines 1c and 8a? If "Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part IT 18 | ves
Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a? If 19 No
"Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part II]
Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? If "Yes,” complete Schedule H 20a No
If “*Yes” to line 204, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? 20b

Form 990 (2012)
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21
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24a

25a
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27

28
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30

31

32

33

34

35a

36

37

38

Part II

v

Part I

Page 4
13 @AA Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants and other assistance to any government or organization in 21 No
the United States on PartIX, column (A), line 1? If “Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts I and II
Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants and other assistance to individuals in the United States 22 v
on Part IX, column (A), line 2? If “Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts I and II] es
Did the organization answer “Yes” to Part VII, Section A, line 3,4, or 5 about compensation of the organization’s N
current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? If "Yes,” 23 ©
complete Schedule ] .
Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000
as of the last day of the year, that was I1ssued after December 31, 20027 If “Yes,” answer lines 24b through 24d N
and complete Schedule K. If "No,” go to line 25 .. . 24a 0
Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? 24b
Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year
to defease any tax-exempt bonds? 24c
Did the organization act as an “on behalf of” Issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? 24d
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations. Did the organization engage In an excess benefit transaction with
a disqualified person during the year? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part I 25a No
Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior
year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization’s prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? If | 25b No
"Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part I
Was a loan to or by a current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, highest compensated employee, or
disqualified person outstanding as of the end of the organization’s tax year? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, 26 No
Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key employee, substantial
contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled entity or family 27 No
member of any of these persons? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part III
Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L, PartIV
instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions)
A current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part

28a No
A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If "Yes,” N
complete Schedule L, Part IV . 28b 0
An entity of which a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee (or a family member thereof) was N
an officer, director, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part IV . 28c 0
Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If "Yes,” complete Schedule M . E 29 Yes
Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified v
conservation contributions? If "Yes,” complete Schedule M . 30 €s
Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If "Yes,” complete Schedule N, No

31
Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If "Yes,” complete N
Schedule N, Part IT 32 0
Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations N
sections 301 7701-2 and 301 7701-3? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part I 33 °
Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part II, III, or IV,

34 Yes
and Part V, line 1
Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? 354 No
If‘Yes'to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage In any transaction with a controlled 35b
entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2
Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related N
organization? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 36 °
Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that 1s not a related organization N
and that Is treated as a partnership for federal iIncome tax purposes? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part VI ¥ 37 °
Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and 197 v
Note. All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O 38 es

Form 990 (2012)



Form 990 (2012) Page 5
Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance

Check If Schedule O contains a response to any questioninthisPartV. . . . . . . W« v W « W« .« « . I
Yes No
la Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096 Enter -0- if not applicable . .| 1la 70
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a Enter -0- If not applicable ib
c Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable
gaming (gambling) winnings to prize winners? . . . .+ +  « o« 4 4 a4 w e a e 1c Yes
2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and
Tax Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered
by thisreturn . . . .+ .+« .+ v e e e e e e e e e 2a 43
b Ifatleastone s reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? 2b v
Note. If the sum of lines 1a and 2a I1s greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see Instructions) s
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? . . . 3a No
b If“Yes,” has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If "No,” provide an explanation in ScheduleO . . . . . 3b
4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority
over, a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial
account)? . . . . . w e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e da No
b If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country
See Instructions for filing requirements for Form TD F 90-22 1, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts
5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? . . 5a No
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or s a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? 5b No
c If"Yes,”to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T?
5c¢
6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the 6a No
organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions?
b If"“Yes,” did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts
were not tax deductible? . . . . . . . L L oo 00 0w e e e e e e 6b
7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).
a Did the organization recelve a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods and 7a Yes
services provided to the payor?
b If"“Yes,” did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? . . . . . 7b Yes
c Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which i1t was required to
fille Form 82822 . . . . . . . 4 4 a e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 72 No
d If“Yes,”indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year . . . . | 7d |
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit
CONtract? . . + & & h h h h e e e e e e e e e e | 76 No
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? . . 7f No
g Ifthe organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as
required? . . . 4 v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s ey T No
h Ifthe organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a
Form 1098-C? . . . « « v e e e e a e e e e e e e e e 7h No
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds and section 509(a)(3) supporting organizations. Did
the supporting organization, or a donor advised fund maintained by a sponsoring organization, have excess
business holdings at any time duringtheyear? . . . . . . . . . . . . 8
9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
a Did the organization make any taxable distributions under section 49662 . . . . . . . . . . 9a
Did the organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? . . . . . . . 9b
10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter
Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIII,ine12 . . . 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club 10b
facilities
11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter
a Gross income from members or shareholders . . . . . . . . . 11a
Gross Income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources
against amounts due orreceived fromthem) . . . . . . . . . . 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 10417 12a
b If“Yes,” enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the
Year . . 4 4w e e e e e e e e 12b
13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a Is the organization licensed to iIssue qualified health plans in more than one state? 13a
Note. See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization i1s required to maintain by the states
in which the organization is licensed to 1Issue qualified health plans 13b
c Enter the amount of reservesonhand . . . . . . . . . . . . 13c
14a Did the organization recelve any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year> . . . . . 14a No
b If"Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If "No,” provide an explanation in Schedule O . . 14b

Form 990 (2012)



Form 990 (2012)

m Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each "Yes” response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a
"No” response to lines 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in Schedule O.

Page 6

See instructions.

Check If Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part VI i~
Section A. Governing Body and Management
Yes No
la Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax 1a 16
year
If there are matenial differences In voting rights among members of the governing
body, or If the governing body delegated broad authority to an executive committee
or similar committee, explain in Schedule O
b Enter the number of voting members included in line 1a, above, who are
independent . . . . .+ v v 4 4 e e e e e e e e W | 1 16
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any
other officer, director, trustee, or key employee? 2 No
3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct 3 No
supervision of officers, directors or trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person?
4 Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was
filed? No
5 Didthe organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets? 5 No
Did the organization have members or stockholders? No
7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint one or
more members of the governing body? 7a No
b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members, stockholders,| 7b No
or persons other than the governing body?
8 Didthe organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the
year by the following
a The governing body? 8a Yes
Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body? 8b Yes
9 1Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at the
organization’s mailing address? If "Yes,” provide the names and addresses n Schedu/e (0] 9 No
Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)
Yes No
10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? 10a No
b If“Yes,” did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters,
affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? 10b
1l1a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing
the form? 1la No
b Describe in Schedule O the process, iIf any, used by the organization to review this Form 990
12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If "No,” go to line 13 12a | Yes
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give
rise to conflicts? 12b | Yes
c Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If "Yes,” describe
in Schedule O how this was done 12c | Yes
13 Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? 13 Yes
14 Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? 14 Yes
15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by
independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
a The organization’s CEO, Executive Director, or top management official 15a | Yes
Other officers or key employees of the organization 15b | Yes
If"Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see Instructions)
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a
taxable entity during the year? 16a No
b If"“Yes,” did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate Its
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the
organization’s exempt status with respect to such arrangements? 16b

Section C. Disclosure

17
18

19

20

List the States with which a copy of this Form 990 Is required to be filed=MI |, IL

Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Form 1023 (or 1024 if applicable), 990, and 990-T (501(c)
(3)s only) available for public inspection Indicate how you made these available Check all that apply

[T Own website ¥ Another's website [¥ Uponrequest [ Other (explain in Schedule 0)

Describe in Schedule O whether (and If so, how), the organization made its governing documents, conflict of
Interest policy, and financial statements available to the public during the tax year

State the name, physical address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the books and records of the organization

BELIZABETH CHODOS 3435 RUPPRECHT WAY SAUGATUCK, MI (269)857-5811

Form 990 (2012)



Form 990 (2012) Page 7

m Compensation of Officers, Directors,Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated
Employees, and Independent Contractors
Check If Schedule O contains a response to any question inthis Part VII . . . . . .+ +« « « « « « « . I

Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees

1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s
tax year

# List all of the organization’s current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount
of compensation Enter-0-1n columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid

# List all of the organization’s current key employees, If any See instructions for definition of "key employee "

# List the organization’s five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee or key employee)
who recelved reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the
organization and any related organizations

# List all of the organization’s former officers, key employees, or highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000
of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations

# List all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations

List persons In the following order individual trustees or directors, institutional trustees, officers, key employees, highest
compensated employees, and former such persons
[v Check this box If neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee

(A) (B) (©) (D) (E) (F)

Name and Title Average Position (do not check Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per more than one box, unless | compensation | compensation amount of
week (list person i1s both an officer from the from related other
any hours and a director/trustee) organization organizations compensation
for related o= | _ 2 = |o T | (W-2/1099- (W-2/1099- from the

organizations (" & | = |Z |® |2& |2 MISC) MISC) organization
o= I ] pair Y
below == |3 |6 |le [T |2 and related
g [m = i b= = B
dotted line) c|= P organizations
o2 e =i
- = [m]} ()
el a
c | = T =
212 |°| 8
O 7
by E
- o
[u
(1) TODD WARNOCK 300
X 0 0 0
PRES EMERTUS
(2) HON PATRICIA BIRKHOLZ 300
X 0 0 0
DIRECTOR
(3) JANET CUNNINGHAM 500
X X 0 0 0
SECRETARY
(4) BARBARA CARR 300
X 0 0 0
DIRECTOR
(5) DAVID BALAS 300
X 0 0 0
DIRECTOR
(6) DAVID GEERTS 5 00
X X 0 0 0
PRESIDENT
(7) MARYJO LEMANSKI 300
X 0 0 0
DIRECTOR
(8) MARGARET LADD 300
X 0 0 0
DIRECTOR
(9) PETER KRUPP 500
X X 0 0 0
VICE PRESIDE
(10) STEVEN MEIER 300
X 0 0 0
DIRECTOR
(11) CAROL SAROSIK 300
X 0 0 0
DIRECTOR
(12) PETE HOULIHAN 300
X X 0 0 0
TREASURER
(13) HARRY ARADER 300
X 0 0 0
DIRECTOR
(14) LOUISE SILBERMANN 300
X 0 0 0
DIRECTOR
(15) ELISSA TENNY 300
X 0 0 0
DIRECTOR
(16) BEN WATSON 300
X 0 0 0
DIRECTOR
(17) ELIZABETH CHODOS 40 00
X 0 0 0
EXEC DIRECTO

Form 990 (2012)
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Page 8

m Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)

(A) (B) (©) (D) (E) (F)
Name and Title Average Position (do not check Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per more than one box, unless compensation compensation amount of other
week (list person i1s both an officer from the from related compensation
any hours and a director/trustee) organization (W- | organizations (W- from the
for related o= — 2 = o T | | 2/1099-MISC) 2/1099-MISC) | organization and
organizations a a S |2 T 25 |2 related
below = = 2|2 o %ﬁ 3 organizations
g [m = == == i)
dotted line) (= = o |T
oa 2 ERE
- = =3 o =
|I: -
2 [Z] || E
T 5 =
¢ &
=l
i1b  Sub-Total >
Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A *
Total (add lines 1b and 1c) *

2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than
$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organizationk

3 Did the organization list any former officer, director or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee
on line 1a? If "Yes,” complete Schedule J for such individual

4 For any individual listed on line 1a, Is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the
organization and related organizations greaterthan $150,000°? If "Yes,” complete Schedule J for such

individual

5 Did any person listed on line 1a recelve or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual for
services rendered to the organization? If "Yes,” complete Schedule J for such person

Yes No
3 No
4 No
5 No

Section B. Independent Contractors

1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of
compensation from the organization Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year

(A)

Name and business address

(B)

Description of services

(<)

Compensation

2 Total number of Independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than
$100,000 of compensation from the organization &

Form 990 (2012)
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Statement of Revenue

Check If Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part VIII .. . .. W
(A) (B) (©) (D)
Total revenue Related or Unrelated Revenue
exempt business excluded from
function revenue tax under
revenue sections
512,513, 0r
514
@ la Federated campaigns . . 1a
2
= § b Membership dues . . . . ib
=]
(e = |
2 £ ¢ Fundraisingevents . . . . 1c
el
E 5 d Related organizations . . . id 100,000
o=
- overnment grants (contributions ,
E e G b ie 3,500
W=
=
E - £ All other contnbutions, gifts, grants, and 1f 259,285
E T} similar amounts not included above
—
= N h contribut luded i |
— g oncasn contributions included In lines 30,000
=0 la-1f $ .
==
= = h Total. Add lines 1a-1f 362,785
oom -
@ Business Code
£ 2a TUITION/FEES NET OF REFUNDS 844,227 844,227
@
=
& b ROOM & BOARD 332,269 332,269
g € WORK SHOP HOSTING 50,680 50,680
=
E d OTHER PROGRAM FEES 18,645 18,645
— e
&
= f All other program service revenue
=
& g Total. Add lines 2a-2f - 1,245,821
3 Investment income (including dividends, interest, 41.069 41.069
and other similar amounts) * ! !
Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds , , *
5 Royalties *
(1) Real (1) Personal
6a Gross rents 10,125
b Less rental
expenses
¢ Rental income 10,125
or (loss)
d Netrental income or (loss) [ 10,125 10,125
(1) Securities (11) Other
7a Gross amount
from sales of 330,692 80,100
assets other
than inventory
b Less costor
other basis and 319,546 100,402
sales expenses
¢ Gain or (loss) 11,146 -20,302
d Netgainor(loss) - -9,156 -9,156
8a Gross income from fundraising
L& events (not including
=5
T $
- of contributions reported on line 1c¢)
é See Part1IV, line 18
i a 180,861
&
= b Less direct expenses . . . b 107,083
o) ¢ Netincome or (loss) from fundraising events . . m 73,778 73,778
9a Gross Income from gaming activities
See Part1IV, line 19
a
b Less direct expenses . . . b
c Net income or (loss) from gaming activities . . .mw
10a Gross sales of inventory, less
returns and allowances
a 2,893
b Less costofgoods sold . . b 2,213
¢ Netincome or (loss) from sales of iInventory . . 680 680
Miscellaneous Revenue Business Code
1la
b
c
d All other revenue
e Total.Addlines 11a-11d -
12  Total revenue. See Instructions -
1,725,102 1,236,665 125,652

Form 990 (2012)



Form 990 (2012) Page 10
m Statement of Functional Expenses
Section 501(c)(3)and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns All other organizations must complete column (A)
Check if Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part IX .. . .
Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, (A) PrOgraS‘nB)SerVICG Manage(r(1:1)ent and Funég)lsmg
7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII. Total expenses expenses general expenses expenses
1 Grants and other assistance to governments and organizations
In the United States See PartIV, line 21
2 Grants and other assistance to individuals in the
United States See PartIV,line 22 235,674 235,674
3 Grants and other assistance to governments,
organizations, and individuals outside the United
States See PartIV, lines 15 and 16
Benefits paid to or for members
5 Compensation of current officers, directors, trustees, and
key employees
6 Compensation not included above, to disqualified persons
(as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and persons
described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) .
7 Othersalaries and wages 538,380 343,607 113,816 80,957
8 Pension plan accruals and contributions (include section 401 (k)
and 403(b) employer contributions) 13,636 6,664 3,873 3,099
9 Other employee benefits 56,606 31,553 13,700 11,353
10 Payroll taxes 46,825 29,493 9,771 7,561
11 Fees for services (non-employees)
a Management
b Legal 1,461 1,461
¢ Accounting 18,725 18,725
d Lobbying
e Professional fundraising services See Part IV, line 17
f Investment management fees 18,540 58 11,485 6,997
g Other (Ifine 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25,
column (A) amount, list line 11g expenses on
Schedule O) 15,793 4,260 11,533
12 Advertising and promotion 44,299 44,299
13 Office expenses 13,987 6,613 4,091 3,283
14 Information technology 2,195 2,195
15 Rovyalties
16 Occupancy 67,785 67,785
17  Travel 37,914 27,444 5,688 4,782
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses for any federal,
state, or local public officials
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings
20 Interest 26,718 24,246 2,472
21 Payments to affiliates
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 219,169 218,286 883
23 Insurance 40,752 28,639 8,590 3,523
24 Other expenses Itemize expenses not covered above (List
miscellaneous expenses In line 24e Ifline 24e amount exceeds 10%
of ine 25, column (A) amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule O )
a CONTRACTED FACULTY 125,862 125,862
b SAIC FINANCIAL AID & FEES 118,006 118,006
c¢ CAMPUS FOOD 110,251 108,081 2,170
d REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE 48,815 48,670 145
e All other expenses 150,670 65,106 67,822 17,742
25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e 1,952,063 1,532,281 268,807 150,975
26 Joint costs. Complete this line only If the organization

reported in column (B) joint costs from a combined
educational campaign and fundraising solicitation Check
here ® [ if following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720)

Form 990 (2012)
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IEEIEEd Balance Sheet

Page 11

Check If Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part X .. '
(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash—non-interest-bearing 137,064 1 298,026
2 Savings and temporary cash investments 2
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net 295,402 3 188,976
4q Accounts recelvable, net 2,415 4
5 Loans and other receivables from current and former officers, directors, trustees, key
employees, and highest compensated employees Complete Part II of
Schedule L
5
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under section
4958 (f)(1)), persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B), and contributing employers
and sponsoring organizations of section 501(c)(9) voluntary employees' beneficiary
" organizations (see Instructions) Complete Part II of Schedule L
o 6
ﬂ 7 Notes and loans receivable, net 7
< 8 Inventories for sale or use 4728| 8 5,085
9 Prepald expenses and deferred charges 26,8971 9 17,154
10a Land, buildings, and equipment cost or other basis Complete
Part VI of Schedule D 10a 6,609,890
b Less accumulated depreciation 10b 1,556,178 5,246,256 10c 5,053,712
11 Investments—publicly traded securities 1,416,116 11 1,712,787
12 Investments—other securities See Part IV, line 11 420,392 12 188,399
13 Investments—program-related See PartIV, line 11 13
14 Intangible assets 14
15 Other assets See PartIV,line 11 569,270 15 306,494
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 34) 8,118,540| 16 7,770,633
17 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 54,079 17 41,040
18 Grants payable 18
19 Deferred revenue 4,900 19 400
20 Tax-exempt bond habilities 20
w 21 Escrow or custodial account hability Complete Part IV of Schedule D 21
:E 22 Loans and other payables to current and former officers, directors, trustees,
= key employees, highest compensated employees, and disqualified
ﬁ persons Complete Part II of Schedule L 22
= 23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties 703,203 23 538,022
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties 24
25 Other liabilities (including federal Income tax, payables to related third parties,
and other habilities not included on lines 17-24) Complete Part X of Schedule
D 25 150,872
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25 762,182 26 730,334
" Organizations that follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here & [/" and complete
E lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34.
% 27 Unrestricted net assets 881,484 27 597,970
E 28 Temporarily restricted net assets 5,830,646| 28 5,798,101
E 29 Permanently restricted net assets 644,228 29 644,228
u:. Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here = [ and
= complete lines 30 through 34.
- 30 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds 30
E 31 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building or equipment fund 31
.»;':|:"1I 32 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds 32
0 33 Total net assets or fund balances 7,356,358| 33 7,040,299
= 34 Total lhabilities and net assets/fund balances 8,118,540 34 7,770,633

Form 990 (2012)
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lm Reconcilliation of Net Assets
Check If Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part XI T
1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12)
1 1,725,102
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25)
2 1,952,063
3 Revenue less expenses Subtractline 2 from line 1
3 -226,961
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 33, column (A))
4 7,356,358
5 Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments
5 101,797
6 Donated services and use of facilities
6
7 Investment expenses
7
8 Prior period adjustments
8
9 Otherchanges in net assets or fund balances (explain in Schedule 0)
9 -190,895
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line 33,
column (B)) 10 7,040,299
Financial Statements and Reporting
Check If Schedule O contains a response to any question in this Part XII T
Yes No
1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990 [ cash [ Accrual [ Other
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other," explainin
Schedule O
2a Were the organization’s financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? 2a No
If 'Yes,' check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or reviewed on
a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both
[ Separate basis [ Consolidated basis [~ Both consolidated and separate basis
b Were the organization’s financial statements audited by an independent accountant? 2b Yes
If‘Yes,' check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a separate
basis, consolidated basis, or both
[ Separate basis [ Consolidated basis [~ Both consolidated and separate basis
c If"Yes,”to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the
audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? 2c No
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain in
Schedule O
3a As aresult of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the
Single Audit Act and OMB Circular A-1337 3a No
b If“Yes,” did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the required| 3b
audit or audits, explain why in Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits

Form 990 (2012)
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SCHEDULE A
(Form 990 or 990EZ)

Department of the Treasury
Intemal Revenue Service

OMB No 1545-0047

Open to Public
# Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. ™ See separate instructions. Inspection

Public Charity Status and Public Support

Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section
4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust.

Name of the organization

OX-BOW

3435 RUPPRECHT WAY

Employer identification number

38-1081760

m Reason for Public Charity Status (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.
The organization I1s not a private foundation because iti1s (For lines 1 through 11, check only one box )

1 [~ A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i).

2 v A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E )

3 [T A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii).

4 [T A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the
hospital's name, city, and state

5 [T Anorganization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in
section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part II )

6 [T A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).

7 [T An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public
described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II )

8 [T A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi) (Complete Part II )

9 [T Anorganization that normally receives (1) more than 331/3% of Iits support from contributions, membership fees, and gross
receipts from activities related to its exempt functions—subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 331/3% of
Its support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable Income (less section 511 tax) from businesses
acquired by the organization after June 30,1975 See section 509(a)(2). (Complete PartIII )

10 [T Anorganization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety See section 509(a)(4).

11 [T An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of
one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2) See section 509(a)(3). Check
the box that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 11e through 11h

a [ Typel b [ Typell ¢ [ Typelll - Functionally integrated d [ TypeIII - Non-functionally integrated
e [T By checking this box, I certify that the organization is not controlled directly or indirectly by one or more disqualified persons
other than foundation managers and other than one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or
section 509(a)(2)
f If the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it i1s a Type I, Type II, or Type I1I supporting organization,
check this box [~
g Since August 17, 2006, has the organization accepted any gift or contribution from any of the
following persons?
(i) A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (1) Yes | No
and (1) below, the governing body of the supported organization? 11g(i)
(ii) A family member of a person described in (1) above? 11g(ii)
(iii) A 35% controlled entity of a person described in (1) or (1) above? 11g(iii)
h Provide the following information about the supported organization(s)

(i) Name of
supported
organization

(i) EIN

(iii) Type of
organization
(described on

(iv) Is the
organization In
col (i) listed In

(v) Did you notify
the organization
in col (i) of your

(vi) Is the
organization In
col (i) organized

(vii) Amount of
monetary
support

lines 1- 9 above your governing support? intheU S 7
or IRC section document?
(see
instructions
) Yes No Yes No Yes No

Total

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990EZ.

Cat No 11285F

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012 Page 2
IERTESN Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)

(Complete only If you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part I or If the organization failed to qualify under
Part II1. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part III.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning

1

6

n) B (a) 2008 (b) 2009 (c) 2010 (d) 2011 (e) 2012 (f) Total

Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received (Do not
include any "unusual

grants ")

Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either
paid to or expended on Its
behalf

The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

Total. Add lines 1 through 3

The portion of total contributions
by each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included on
line 1 that exceeds 2% of the
amount shown on line 11, column

(f)

Public support. Subtract line 5 from
line 4

Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning

7
8

10

11

12
13

iy (a) 2008 (b) 2009 (c) 2010 (d) 2011 (e) 2012 (f) Total

Amounts from line 4

Gross Income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties
and income from similar

sources

Net income from unrelated
business activities, whether or not
the business Is regularly carried
on

Otherincome Do notinclude gain
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (Explainin Part IV )

Total support (Add lines 7 through
10)

Gross receipts from related activities, etc (see Iinstructions) | 12 |

First five years. If the Form 990 1s for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a 501(c)(3) organization, check

this box and stop here -
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14 Public support percentage for 2012 (line 6, column (f) divided by line 11, column (f)) 14
15 Public support percentage for 2011 Schedule A, PartII, line 14 15
16a 33 1/3% support test—2012. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 1s 33 1/3% or more, check this box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization >
b 33 1/3% support test—2011. If the organization did not check a box online 13 or 16a, and line 15 1s 33 1/3% or more, check this
box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization >
17a 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2012. If the organization did not check a box online 13, 16a,or 16b, and line 14
I1Is 10% or more, and If the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances"” test, check this box and stop here. Explain
in Part IV how the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances” test The organization qualifies as a publicly supported
organization [ 2
b 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2011. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line
151s 10% or more, and If the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances” test, check this box and stop here.
Explainin Part IV how the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances"” test The organization qualifies as a publicly
supported organization PI_
18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box online 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see
Instructions L2

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012 Page 3
.m Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)

(Complete only If you checked the box on line 9 of Part I or If the organization failed to qualfy under
Part II. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part II.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (°Enf)'s:a' vear beginning (a) 2008 (b) 2009 (c) 2010 (d) 2011 (e) 2012 (F) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received (Do not
include any "unusual grants ")
2 Gross receipts from admissions,
merchandise sold or services
performed, or facilities furnished in
any activity that 1s related to the
organization's tax-exempt
purpose
3 Gross recelipts from activities that
are not an unrelated trade or
business under section 513
4 Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either
paid to or expended on Its
behalf
5 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge
6 Total.Add lines 1 through 5
7a Amounts includedonlines 1, 2,
and 3 recelved from disqualified
persons
b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3
received from other than
disqualified persons that exceed
the greater of $5,000 or 1% of the
amount on line 13 for the year
c Addlines 7aand 7b
8 Public support (Subtract line 7¢
from line 6 )
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (°Enf)'s:a' vear beginning (a) 2008 (b) 2009 (c) 2010 (d) 2011 (e) 2012 (F) Total
9 Amounts from line 6
10a Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties
and income from similar
sources
b Unrelated business taxable
income (less section 511 taxes)
from businesses acquired after
June 30,1975
c Addlines 10a and 10b
11 Net income from unrelated
business activities not included
in line 10b, whether or not the
business Is regularly carried on
12 Otherincome Do notinclude
gain or loss from the sale of
capital assets (Explainin Part
IV )
13 Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c,
11,and 12)
14 First five years. If the Form 990 1s for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax yearas a 501(c)(3) organization,
check this box and stop here >
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15 Public support percentage for 2012 (line 8, column (f) divided by line 13, column (f)) 15
16 Public support percentage from 2011 Schedule A, Part I1I, line 15 16
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2012 (line 10c¢, column (f) divided by line 13, column (f)) 17
18 Investment income percentage from 2011 Schedule A, PartIII, line 17 18
19a 33 1/3% support tests—2012. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 I1s more than 33 1/3%, and line 17 1s not
more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization L2
b 33 1/3% support tests—2011. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 orline 19a, and line 16 1s more than 33 1/3% and line 18
I1s not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization L2
20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see Instructions L2

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012
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Page 4

Part IV Supplemental Information. Complete this part to provide the explanations required by Part II, line 10;
Part II, ine 17a or 17b; and Part III, line 12. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See

instructions).

Facts And Circumstances Test

Explanation

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012



lefile GRAPHIC print - DO NOT PROCESS | As Filed Data - | DLN: 93493259008773]

SCHEDULE D OMB No 1545-0047
(Form 990) Supplemental Financial Statements 201 2

k= Complete if the organization answered "Yes," to Form 990,

Department of the Treasury Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b Open to Public

Intemal Revenue Service & Attach to Form 990. k- See separate instructions. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
OX-BOW

3435 RUPPRECHT WAY

38-1081760

m Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. Complete If the

organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

1
2
3
4
5

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

Total number at end of year

Aggregate contributions to (during year)

Aggregate grants from (during year)

Aggregate value at end of year

Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors In writing that the assets held in donor advised
funds are the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control? [~ Yes ™ No

Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors 1n writing that grant funds can be
used only for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose
conferring iImpermissible private benefit? [~ Yes ™ No

m Conservation Easements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 7.

1

a 0N T o

Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply)
[T Preservation of land for public use (e g, recreation or education) [ Preservation of an historically important land area
[T Protection of natural habitat [T Preservation of a certified historic structure

[~ Preservation of open space

Complete lines 2a through 2d iIf the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation
easement on the last day of the tax year

Held at the End of the Year

Total number of conservation easements 2a
Total acreage restricted by conservation easements 2b
Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included in (a) 2c

Number of conservation easements included in (¢) acquired after 8/17/06, and noton a
historic structure listed in the National Register 2d

Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during

the tax year &

Number of states where property subject to conservation easement 1s located &

Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of violations, and
enforcement of the conservation easements 1t holds? [~ Yes [~ No

Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
[

Amount of expenses Incurred In monitoring, Inspecting, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
L

Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4 )(B)(1)
and section 170(h)(4 )(B)(11)? [ Yes [ No

In Part XIII, describe how the organization reports conservation easements In its revenue and expense statement, and
balance sheet, and include, If applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes
the organization’s accounting for conservation easements

m Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.

Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part 1V, line 8.

la

b

If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not to report In its revenue statement and balance sheet
works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public
service, provide, in Part XIII, the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items

If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet
works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public
service, provide the following amounts relating to these items

() Revenues included in Form 990, Part VIII, ine 1 3

(ii) Assets included in Form 990, Part X L]

If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the
following amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) relating to these items

Revenues included in Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 3

Assets Included in Form 990, Part X 3

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 52283D Schedule D (Form 990) 2012
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Manizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)

3 Using the organization’s acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its
collection items (check all that apply)

a [~ Ppublic exhibition d

[T Loan or exchange programs

b [ Scholarly research e [ Other

c l_ Preservation for future generations

4 Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose In
Part XIII

5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures or other similar

assets to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization’s collection? [ Yes ™ No
Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990,
Part IV, line 9, or reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.
la Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not
included on Form 990, Part X? [ Yes [ No
b If"Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIII and complete the following table
Amount
€ Beginning balance 1c
d  Additions during the year id
€ Distributions during the year le
f  Ending balance 1f
2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 217 [~ Yes [~ No
b If “Yes,” explain the arrangement in Part XIII Check here If the explanation has been provided in Part XIII I_

Endowment Funds. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 10

(a)Current year (b)Prior year b (c)Two years back | (d)Three years back | (e)Four years back
1a Beginning of year balance 1,802,000 1,382,511 715,255 1,150,277
b Contributions 500,000 555,050 75
c Netinvestment earnings, gains, and losses 133,550 36,039 117,201 31334
d Grants or scholarships
e Other expenditures for facilities
and programs -39,110 -44,472 -5,085 -403,763
f Administrative expenses
g End of year balance 1,896,441 1,802,000 1,382,511 715,255
2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as
a Board designated or quasi-endowment
b Permanent endowment & 33970 %
€ Temporarily restricted endowment & 66 030 %
The percentages In lines 2a, 2b, and 2¢c should equal 100%
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the
organization by Yes | No
(i) unrelated organizations 3a(i) No
(ii) related organizations e e e e e e 3a(ii) | Yes
b If"Yes" to 3a(n), are the related organizations listed as reqU|red on Schedule R? 3b Yes
4 Describe in Part XIII the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds
m Land, Buildings, and Equipment. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.
Description of property (a) Cost or other | (b)Cost or other | (c) Accumulated (d) Book value
basis (investment) basis (other) depreciation
1a Land 26,800 26,800
b Buildings 6,115,905 1,239,984 4,875,921
c Leasehold improvements
d Equipment 467,185 316,194 150,991
e Other . .
Total. Add lines 1a through le (Co/umn (d) must equa/ Form 990, Part X, column (B), /ine 10(c).) L3 5,053,712

Schedule D (Form 990) 2012
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m Investments—Other Securities. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

(a) Description of security or category
(including name of security)

(b)Book value

(c) Method of valuation
Cost or end-of-year market value

(1)Financial derivatives

(2)Closely-held equity Interests

Other

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col (B) lne 12 )

-

Investments—Program Related. See

Form 990, Part X, line 13.

(a) Description of Investment type

(b) Book value

(c) Method of valuation
Cost or end-of-year market value

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col (B) line 13)

-

Other Assets. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.

(a) Description

(b) Book value

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col.(B) line 15.)
Other Liabilities. See Form 990, Part X, line 25.

1 (a) Description of liability (b) Book value
Federal income taxes

DUE TO ART INSTITUTE OF CHICAGO 150,872
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col (B) Ine 25) m 150,872

2.Fin 48 (ASC 740) Footnote In Part XIII, provide the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that reports the

organization's hiability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740) Check here If the text of the footnote has been provided In
Part XIII

~

Schedule D (Form 990) 2012
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m Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return
Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements . . . . . . . 1 1,617,459
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12
a Net unrealized gains on investments 2a 101,797
b Donated services and use of facilities 2b
c Recoveries of prior year grants 2c
d Other (Describe in Part XIII ) 2d -190,900
e Add lines 2a through 2d 2e -89,103
3 Subtract line 2e from line 1 3 1,706,562
Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, ine 12, but notonline 1
Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b 4a 18,540
Other (Describe in Part XIII ) 4b
c Add lines 4a and 4b 4c 18,540
5 Total revenue Add lines 3 and 4¢. (This must equal Form 990, PartI,linel12) . . . . 5 1,725,102
m Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return
Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements 1 1,933,518
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, PartIX, line 25
a Donated services and use of facilities 2a
b Prior year adjustments 2b
c Other losses 2c
d Other (Describe in Part XIII ) 2d
e Add lines 2a through 2d 2e
3 Subtract line 2e from line 1 3 1,933,518
4 Amounts included on Form 990, PartIX, line 25, but not on line 1:
Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b 4a 18,540
Other (Describe in Part XIII ) 4b 5
c Add lines 4a and 4b 4c 18,545
Total expenses Add lines 3 and 4¢. (This must equal Form 990, PartI,line18) . . . . . . 5 1,952,063

m Supplemental Information

Complete this part to provide the descriptions required for Part II, ines 3,5, and 9, PartIlI, lines 1a and 4, Part IV, lines 1b and 2b,
PartV, line 4, Part X, line 2, Part XI, lines 2d and 4b, and Part XII, ines 2d and 4b Also complete this part to provide any additional

information
Identifier Return Reference Explanation
LIABILITY UNDER FIN 48 SCHEDULE D, PAGE 3, PART X THE ORGANIZATION EVALUATES ITS UNCERTAIN TAX
FOOTNOTE POSITIONS USING THE PROVISIONS OF FASB

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS CODIFICATION 450,
CONTINGENGENCIES ACCORDINGLY,A LOSS
CONTINENCY IS RECOGNIZED WHEN IT IS PROBABLE
THAT A LIABILITY HAS BEEN INCURRED AS OF THE DATE
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND THE AMOUNT OF
THE LOSS CAN BE REASONABLY ESTIMATED THE AMOUNT
RECOGNIZED IS SUBJECT TO ESTIMATES AND
MANAGEMENT JUDGEMENT WITH RESPECT TO THE LIKELY
OUTCOME OF EACH UNCERTAIN TAX POSITION THE
AMOUNT THAT IS ULTIMATELY SUSTAINED FOR AN
INDIVIDUAL UNCERTAIN TAX POSITION ORFORALL
UNCERTAIN TAX POSITIONS IN THE AGGREGATE COULD
DIFFER FROM THE AMOUNT RECOGNIZED THE
ORGANIZATION CONTINUALLY EVALUATES EXPIRING
STATUTES OF LIMITATIONS, AUDITS, PROPOSED
SETTLEMENTS, CHANGES IN TAX LAWAND NEW
AUTHORATIVE RULINGS NO LOSS CONTINGENCY HAS
BEEN RECOGNIZED IN THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE AMOUNTS INCLUDED IN|SCHEDULE D, PAGE 4, PART XI,

UNREALIZED LOSS OF LAND HELD -190,900

FINANCIALS - OTHER LINE 2D
EXPENSE AMOUNTS INCLUDED SCHEDULE D, PAGE 4, PART XII, |[BOOK/TAX DEPRECIATION DIFFERENCE 5
ON RETURN - OTHER LINE 4B

Schedule D (Form 990) 2012
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SCHEDULE E SChOOIS OMB No 1545-0047

(Form 990 or 990-EZ)
»Complete if the organization answered "Yes"” to Form 990, Part 1V, line 13,

Department of the Treasury or Form 990-EZ, Part VI, line 48.

Open to Public
Intemal Revenue Service » Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Inl::;pection

Name of the organization Employer identification number
OX-BOW
3435 RUPPRECHT WAY

38-1081760
| Part I | YES| NO
1 Does the organization have a racially nondiscriminatory policy toward students by statement in its charter, bylaws,
other governing instrument, or in a resolution of its governing body? 1 Yes
2 Does the organization include a statement of its racially nondiscriminatory policy toward students in all its
brochures, catalogues, and other written communications with the public dealing with student admissions,
programs, and scholarships? 2 | Yes
3 Has the organization publicized its racially nondiscriminatory policy through newspaper or broadcast media during
the period of solicitation for students, or during the registration period If it has no solicitation program, in a way
that makes the policy known to all parts of the general community it serves? If "Yes," please describe If "No,"
please explain If you need more space use Part II 3 | Yes
4 Does the organization maintain the following?
a Records indicating the racial composition of the student body, faculty, and administrative staff? da | Yes
b Records documenting that scholarships and other financial assistance are awarded on a racially nondiscriminatory
basis? 4b | Yes
€ Copies of all catalogues, brochures, announcements, and other written communications to the public dealing
with student admissions, programs, and scholarships? 4c | Yes
d Copies of all material used by the organization or on i1ts behalf to solicit contributions? 4d | Yes
If you answered "No" to any of the above, please explain If you need more space, use PartIl
5 Does the organization discriminate by race in any way with respect to
a Students' rights or privileges? 5a No
b Admissions policies? 5b No
c Employment of faculty or administrative staff? 5c No
d Scholarships or other financial assistance? 5d No
e Educational policies? Se No
f Use of facilities? 5f No
g Athletic programs? 5q No
h Other extracurricular activities? 5h No
If you answered "Yes" to any of the above, please explain If you need more space, use Part Il
6a Does the organization receive any financial aid or assistance from a governmental agency? 6a No
b Has the organization's right to such aid ever been revoked or suspended? 6b No
If you answered "Yes" to either line 6a or line 6b, explain on Part II
7 Does the organization certify that it has complied with the applicable requirements of sections 4 01 through 4 05
of Rev Proc 75-50,1975-2 C B 587, covering racial nondiscrimination? If "No," explain on Part II 7 Yes

Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 50085D Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012
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m Supplemental Information. Complete this part to provide the explanations required by Part I, lines 3,4d, 5h, 6b, and 7, as
applicable Also complete this part to provide any other additional information (see instructions)

Identifier Return Explanation
Reference
PUBLICATION OF NONDISCRIMINATORY POLICY | SCHEDULEE NONDISCRIMINATION POLICY APPEARS IN SCHOOL CATALOG AND IT
IN MEDIA EXPLANATION LINE3 APPEARS ON REGISTRATION FORM AS WELL

Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012
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SCHEDULE G Supplemental Information Regarding OMB No 1545-0047
(Form 990 or 990-E7) Fundraising or Gaming Activities 2012
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part 1V, lines 17, 18, or 19, or if the organization entered
more than $15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a. Form 990-EZ filers are not required to complete this part.

Department of the Treasury ™ Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. * See separate instructions. Ope n to Public
Intemal Revenue Service Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number
OX-BOW
3435 RUPPRECHT WAY 38-1081760

IEETEH Fundraising Activities. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 17.

1 Indicate whether the organization raised funds through any of the following activities Check all that apply

a [ Mailsolicitations e [ solicitation of non-government grants

b [ Internet and email solicitations f [ solicitation of government grants

c¢ [ Phone solicitations g I Special fundraising events

d [ In-person solicitations
2a Did the organization have a written or oral agreement with any individual (including officers, directors, trustees

or key employees listed in Form 990, Part VII) or entity in connection with professional fundraising services? |_ Yes |_ No

b If“Yes,” list the ten highest paid individuals or entities (fundraisers) pursuant to agreements under which the fundraiser s

to be compensated at least $5,000 by the organization

Total. . . . . . .+ +« v v e e e e e .

(i) Name and address of (i) Activity (iii) Did (iv) Gross receipts (v) Amount paid to (vi) Amount paid to
individual fundraiser have from activity (or retained by) (or retained by)
or entity (fundraiser) custody or fundraiser listed in organization
control of col (i)
contributions?
Yes No

3

List all states Iin which the organization is registered or licensed to solicit funds or has been notified it 1Is exempt from registration or
licensing

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990or 990-EZ. Cat No 50083H Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012
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m Fundraising Events. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 18, or reported
more than $15,000 of fundraising event contributions and gross income on Form 990-EZ, lines 1 and 6b. List
events with gross receipts greater than $5,000.

(a) Event #1 (b) Event #2 (c) Other events (d) Total events
(add col (a) through
BENEFITS & AUCT col (<))
(event type) (event type) (total number)
ul}
= [1  Gross receipts 180,861 180,861
il
E 2 Less Contributions
ce 3 Gross income (line 1
minus line 2) . . . 180,861 180,861
4 Cash prizes
5 Noncash prizes
W
k]
2 le Rent/facility costs
k]
0
Iﬁ 7 Food and beverages
g 8 Entertainment
_
O 9 Other direct expenses . 107,083 107,083
10 Direct expense summary Add lines 4 through 9 in column(d) . . . . . . . .+ . . . | (107,083)
11 Net income summary Combine line 3, column (d), and line 10 P e e e e e e [ 73778

Gaming. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 19, or reported more than
$15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a.

4 (a) Bingo (b) Pull tabs/Instant (c) Other gaming (d) Total gaming (add
E bingo/progressive bingo col (a) through col
il
= (c))
& |1 Grossrevenue
$ 2 Cash prizes
0
=
& | 3 Non-cash prizes
= 4 Rent/facility costs
2
) 5 Otherdirect expenses
™ Yes ™ Yes ™ Yes
6 Volunteer labor . . . ™ No ™ No ™ No

7 Direct expense summary Add lines 2 through 5 in column(d) . . . . . . . . . . . |

8 Netgaming income summary Combine lines 1 and 7 in column(d). . . . . . . . . . |

9 Enter the state(s) in which the organization operates gaming activities

Is the organization licensed to operate gaming activities in each of these states? . . . . . . . . . . . . I_Yes I_NO

If "No," explain

10a Were any of the organization's gaming licenses revoked, suspended or terminated during the tax year? . . . . . |_ Yes |_ No

b If"Yes," explain

Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012
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Does the organization operate gaming activities with nonmembers? . . . . . . . «+ « . . . .« « .+ . . |_ Yes |_ No

12 Is the organization a grantor, beneficlary or trustee of a trust or a member of a partnership or other entity
formed to administer chanitable gaming® . . . . . . .+ v 4 v v v v s e e e n oo | Yes T No

13 Indicate the percentage of gaming activity operated In
The organization's facitity . . . .+ . .+ + « & + & + &« 4« 4 4 4 4 4 w« & a|13a
Anoutsidefacility . . . . + . & & &+ &« 4 4 4 4 w4 4w 4w w .| 13b

14 Enter the name and address of the person who prepares the organization's gaming/special events books and records

Name I

Address

15a Does the organization have a contract with a third party from whom the organization receives gaming

FEVENUE? & v 4 v 4 v a ke e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e o T ves T No
b If"Yes," enter the amount of gaming revenue received by the organization ® ¢ and the

amount of gaming revenue retained by the third party I ¢

€ If"Yes," enter name and address of the third party

Name I

Address I+

16 Gaming manager information

Name I

Description of services provided®
I_ Director/officer I_ Employee I_ Independent contractor
17 Mandatory distributions
a s the organization required under state law to make charitable distributions from the gaming proceeds to
retain the state gaming icense? . . . . . . . . . . .4 e e a e e e e e e e e M ves T No
b Enter the amount of distributions required under state law distributed to other exempt organizations or spent
In the organization's own exempt activities during the tax year® $

(- 1484 Supplemental Information. Complete this part to provide the explanations required by Part I, line 2b,
columns (m) and (v), and Part III, lines 9, 9b, 10b, 15b, 15¢, 16, and 17b, as applicable. Also complete this
part to provide any additional information (see instructions).

Identifier Return Reference Explanation

Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2012
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Schedule I OMB No 1545-0047
(Form 990) Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations, 201 2
Governments and Individuals in the United States

Complete if the organization answered "Yes," to Form 990, Part 1V, line 21 or 22. Open to Public
Department of the Treasury B Attach to Form 990 P ;
Internal Revenue Service Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number
O X-BOW

3435 RUPPRECHT WAY 38-1081760
General Information on Grants and Assistance

1 Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or assistance, the grantees' eligibility for the grants or assistance, and
the selection criteria used to award the grants orassistance?. . . . . . . . . - s e e e e e e e e e e e e e ¥ Yes ™ No

2 Describe in Part IV the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of grant funds n the Unlted States

m Grants and Other Assistance to Governments and Organizations in the United States. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to
Form 990, Part 1V, line 21, for any recipient that received more than $5,000. Part II can be duplicated if additional space 1s needed.

(a) Name and address of (b) EIN (c) IRC Code (d) Amount of cash (e) Amount of non- (f) Method of (g) Description of (h) Purpose of grant
organization section grant cash valuation non-cash assistance orassistance
or government If applicable assistance (book, FMV,
appraisal,
other)
2 Enter total number of section 501(c)(3) and government organizations listed intheline 1 table. . . . . . .+ . .+ .+ .« .+« .+ .+« . . [
3 Enter total number of other organizations listed inthe inel1 table. . . . . . .+ .+ .+ .+ .+ . o .« .+ .« . e e .. . >

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 50055P Schedule I (Form 990) 2012
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m Grants and Other Assistance to Individuals in the United States. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 22.

Part III can be duplicated If additional space Is needed.

(a)Type of grant or assistance (b)Number of
recipients
(1) WORK STUDY SCHOLARSHIPS 71
(2) RESIDENCY SCHOLARSHIPS 14

(3) SCHOLARSHIPS

122

(c)Amount of (d)Amount of (e)Method of valuation (book,
cash grant non-cash assistance FMV, appraisal, other)
70,480
23,840
141,354

(f)Description of non-cash assistance

Part IV Supplemental Information.

Complete this part to provide the information required in Part I, line 2, Part III, column (b), and any other additional information

Identifier

Return Reference

Explanation

PROCEDURES FOR
MONITORING THE USE
OF GRANT FUNDS
INSIDE THE UNITED
STATES

SCHEDULEI,PAGE 1,PARTI,
LINE 2

SCHOLARSHIP AWARDS ARE NOT PAID DIRECTLY TO THE STUDENTS AMOUNT AWARDED REDUCES THE TOTAL
AMOUNT OF TUITION, FEES,ROOM OR BOARD INVOICED THEREFORE OX-BOW KNOWS THAT THE FUNDS ARE

BEING UTILIZED ASINTENDED

ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION

SCHEDULE I, PAGE 4,PART IV

WORK SCHOLARSHIPS ARE AWARDED ON A FIRST COME FIRST SERVE BASIS NEED BASED SCHOLARSHIPS ARE
EVALUATED BASED ON STUDENTS FINANCIAL SITUATION REMAINING SCHOLARSHIPS AWARDED BY JURY OF 5

TO 6 PEOPLE BASED ON MERIT

Schedule I (Form 990) 2012
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SCHEDULE M
(Form 990)

Department of the Treasury
Intemal Revenue Service

Noncash Contributions

»Complete if the organizations answered "Yes" on Form

990, Part 1V, lines 29 or 30.
» Attach to Form 990.

OMB No 1545-0047

Open to Public
Inspection

Name of the organization
OX-BOW
3435 RUPPRECHT WAY

m Types of Property

Employer identification number

38-1081760

(a) (b) (o) (d)
Check Number of contributions Noncash contribution Method of determining
If or items contributed amounts reported on noncash contribution amounts
applicable Form 990, Part VIII, line
1g
1 Art—Works of art X 1 30,000|MARKET
2 Art—Historical treasures
3 Art—Fractional interests
4 Books and publications
5 Clothing and household
goods . .
6 Cars and other vehicles
7 Boats and planes
8 Intellectual property
9 Secunities—Publicly traded
10 Securities—Closely held stock .
11 Securities—Partnership, LLC,
or trust interests
12 Securities—Miscellaneous
13 Qualified conservation
contribution—Historic
structures .
14 Qualified conservation
contribution—O ther
15 Real estate—Residential
16 Real estate—Commercial
17 Real estate—Other
18 Collectibles
19 Food inventory
20 Drugs and medical supplies
21 Taxidermy
22 Historical artifacts
23 Scientific specimens
24 Archeological artifacts
25 Otherw ( )
26 Otherw( )
27 Otherw( )
28 Otherw ( )
29 Number of Forms 8283 received by the organization during the tax year for contributions
for which the organization completed Form 8283, Part IV, Donee Acknowledgement 29
Yes | No
30a During the year, did the organization receive by contribution any property reported in Part I, lines 1-28 that it
must hold for at least three years from the date of the initial contribution, and which 1s not required to be used
for exempt purposes for the entire holding period? 30a No
b If"Yes," describe the arrangement in Part II
31 Does the organization have a gift acceptance policy that requires the review of any non-standard contributions? 31 | Yes
32a Does the organization hire or use third parties or related organizations to solicit, process, or sell noncash
contributions? 32a No
b If"Yes," describe in PartII
33 Ifthe organization did not report an amount in column (c) for a type of property for which column (a) 1s checked,
describe in Part II
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 51227) Schedule M (Form 990) (2012)
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Supplemental Information. Complete this part to provide the information required by Part I, ines 30b,
32b, and 33, and whether the organization 1s reporting in Part I, column (b), the number of contributions, the
number of items received, or a combination of both. Also complete this part for any additional information.

Identifier Return Reference Explanation

Schedule M (Form 990) (2012)
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SCHEDULE O
(Form 990 or 990-EZ)

Department of the Treasury
Intemal Revenue Service

Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ

Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on

OMB No 1545-0047

Open to Public
Inspection

Form 990 or to provide any additional information.
e Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ.

Name of the organization
OX-BOW
3435 RUPPRECHT WAY

Employer identification number

38-1081760
Identifier Return Explanation
Reference

ORGANIZATIONS FORM 990, RETURN REVIEWED BY TREASURER AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR PRIOR TO SUBMISSION
PROCESS USED TO PAGE 6, PART
REVIEW FORM 990 VI, LINE11B
ENFORCEMENT OF FORM 990, COMPLIANCE WITH POLICY IS MONITORED ANNUALLY AND WILL BE ENFORCED
CONFLICTS POLICY PAGE 6, PART

VI, LINE12C
COMPENSATION FORM 990, THE BOARD REVIEWS AND APPROVES COMPENSATION OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AS
PROCESS FOR TOP PAGE 6, PART | PART OF THE REVIEW PROCESS, SALARY DATA FROM COMPARABLE ORGANIZATIONS 1S
OFFICIAL VI, LINE 15A CONSIDERED A FORMAL POLICY EXISTS WITH REGARDS TO THE DETERMINATION OF

COMPENSATION THE DECISION MAKING PROCESS WAS NOT CONTEMPORANEOUSLY
SUBSTANTIATED, HOWEVER THE BOARD APPROVED THE WAGES

COMPENSATION FORM 990, THERE ARE NO OTHER OFFICERS OR KEY EMPLOY EES THAT ARE COMPENSATED NO BOARD
PROCESS FOR PAGES6, PART | MEMBERS ARE COMPENSATED
OFFICERS VI, LINE15B
GOVERNING FORM 990, INTERESTED PARTIES MAY OBTAIN A COPY OF THE FORM 990 AND 1023 BY CONTACTING THE
DOCUMENTS PAGE 6, PART | OFFICES OF OX-BOW THE FORM 990 IS ALSO AVAILABLE ON GUIDESTAR
DISCLOSURE VI, LINE19
EXPLANATION
RECONCILIATION OF FORM 990, UNREALIZED LOSS OF LAND HELD -190,900 BOOK / TAX DEPRECIATION DIFFERENCE 5
CHANGES - OTHER PART X|, LINE9
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. . . OMB No 1545-0047
SCHEDULE R Related Organizations and Unrelated Partnerships :
(Form 990) = Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part 1V, line 33, 34, 35, 36, or 37. 20 1 2
= Attach to Form 990. k- See separate instructions.

Department of the Treasury Open to P_ublic
Intemal Revenue Service Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number
OX-BOW
3435 RUPPRECHT WAY 38-1081760
IEEREHl 1dentification of Disregarded Entities (Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 33.)
(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) ()]
Name, address, and EIN (if applicable) of disregarded entity Pnmary activity Legal domicile (state Total iIncome End-of-year assets Direct controlling
or foreign country) entity

IEXYTEil 1dentification of Related Tax-Exempt Organizations (Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 34 because it had one
or more related tax-exempt organizations during the tax year.)

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) 0] (9)
Name, address, and EIN of related organization Pnmary activity Legal domicile (state Exempt Code section Public chanty status Direct controlling Section 512(b)
or foreign country) (if section 501(c)(3)) entity (13) controlled
entity?
Yes No
(1) ART INSTITUTE OF CHICAGO SEE NOTES L 501C3 2 No
37 S WABASH N/A

CHICAGO, IL 60603
36-2167725

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 50135Y Schedule R (Form 990) 2012



Schedule R (Form 990) 2012

Page 2

EETSEi#d Identification of Related Organizations Taxable as a Partnership (Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 34

because It had one or more related organizations treated as a partnership during the tax year.)

(a)
Name, address, and EIN of
related organization

(b)

Primary activity

(c)
Legal
domicile
(state or
foreign
country)

(d)
Direct
controlling
entity

(e) 0] (9) (h) (O]
Predominant Share of Share of |Disproprtionate| Code V—UBI
income(related, |total income |end-of-year| allocations? [amount in box
unrelated, assets 20 of
excluded from Schedule K-1
tax under (Form 1065)
sections 512-
514)
Yes

a (k)
General or | Percentage
managing | ownership

partner?
Yes | No

(14 ¥A"A Identification of Related Organizations Taxable as a Corporation or Trust (Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part 1V,

line 34 because It had one or more related organizations treated as a corporation or trust during the tax year.)

(a)
Name, address, and EIN of
related organization

(b)

Primary activity

(c)

Legal
domicile
(state or foreign
country)

(d)

Direct controlling

entity

(e)
Type of entity
(C corp, S
corp,
or trust)

)
Share of total
Income

(9)

Share of end-

of-year
assets

(h) 0]
Percentage Section 512
ownership (b)(13)

controlled
entity?
Yes No

Schedule R (Form 990) 2012



Schedule R (Form 990) 2012 Page 3

Transactions With Related Organizations (Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 34, 35b, or 36.)

Note. Complete line 1 if any entity 1s listed in Parts II, III, or IV of this schedule Yes | No
1 During the tax year, did the orgranization engage I1n any of the following transactions with one or more related organizations listed in Parts II-IV?

a Receipt of (i) interest (ii) annuities (iii) royalties or (iv) rent from a controlled entity 1a No
b Gift, grant, or capital contribution to related organization(s) 1b No
c Gift, grant, or capital contribution from related organization(s) 1c | Yes
d Loans orloan guarantees to or for related organization(s) id No
e Loans orloan guarantees by related organization(s) le No
f Dividends from related organization(s) 1f No
g Sale of assets to related organization(s) 1g No
h Purchase of assets from related organization(s) 1h No
i Exchange of assets with related organization(s) 1i No
j Lease offacilities, equipment, or other assets to related organization(s) 1j No
k Lease of facilities, equipment, or other assets from related organization(s) 1k No
I Performance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations for related organization(s) 1l | Yes
m Performance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations by related organization(s) im| Yes
n Sharing of facilities, equipment, mailing lists, or other assets with related organization(s) in| Yes
o Sharing of paid employees with related organization(s) 1o No
p Remmbursement paid to related organization(s) for expenses 1p | Yes
q Reimbursement paid by related organization(s) for expenses 1q No
r Othertransfer of cash or property to related organization(s) 1r No
s Other transfer of cash or property from related organization(s) 1s | Yes

2 Ifthe answerto any of the above I1s "Yes," see the instructions for information on who must complete this line, including covered relationships and transaction thresholds

(a) (b) (c) (d)
Name of other organization Transaction Amount involved Method of determining amount involved
type (a-s)
(1) ART INSTITUTE OF CHICAGO M 119,579|CASH
(2) ART INSTITUTE OF CHICAGO C 100,000|CASH
(3) ART INSTITUTE OF CHICAGO S 26,548|CASH

Schedule R (Form 990) 2012



Schedule R (Form 990) 2012

Page 4

IEEXTEZ28 Unrelated Organizations Taxable as a Partnership (Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 37.)
Provide the following information for each entity taxed as a partnership through which the organization conducted more than five percent of its activities (measured by total assets or gross

revenue) that was not a related organization See instructions regarding exclusion for certain investment partnerships

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) ()] (9) (h) Q)] 6)] (k)

Name, address, and EIN of entity Primary activity Legal Predominant | Are all partners Share of Share of Disproprtionate Code V—UBI | General or Percentage

domicile income section total end-of-year allocations? amount In managing ownership

(state or (related, 501(c)(3) income assets box 20 partner?

foreign unrelated, organizations? of Schedule

country) |excluded from K-1

tax under (Form 1065)
section 512-
514)
Yes| No Yes No Yes No

Schedule R (Form 990) 2012



Schedule R (Form 990) 2012 Page b
.m Supplemental Information

Complete this part to provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule R (see Iinstructions)
Identifier Return
Reference

ADDITIONAL SCHEDULE R
INFORMATION

Explanation

THE SCHOOL OF THE ART INSTITUTE OF CHICAGO RECEIVES ENDOWED DONATIONS THAT HAVE BEEN RESTRICTED FOR OXBOWS USE

EARNINGS ON THE ENDOWED FUNDS AND OTHER AMOUNTS INTENDED FOR CURRENT USE ARE PASSED THROUGH TO OXBOWIN COMPLIANCE
WITH THE DONOR WISHES




Additional Data

Software ID:
Software Version:
EIN:

Name:

38-1081760

OX-BOW
3435 RUPPRECHT WAY

Return to Form
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DLN: 93493259008773]

.. 4562 Depreciation and Amortization

(Including Information on Listed Property)
Department of the Treasury

Intemal Revenue Service (99)

P See separate instructions. M Attach to your tax return.

OMBNo 1545-0172

2012

Attachment
Sequence No 179

Business or activity to which this form relates
Name(s) shown on return INDIRECT DEPRECIATION
OX-BOW

3435 RUPPRECHT WAY

Identifying number

38-1081760

Election To Expense Certain Property Under Section 179

Note: If you have any listed property, complete Part V before you complete Part I.

Maximum amount (see Iinstructions)
Total cost of section 179 property placed in service (see Instructions)
Threshold cost of section 179 property before reduction in limitation (see instructions)

Reduction in Imitation Subtract line 3 from line 2 If zero orless, enter-0-

v A W N R

Dollar imitation for tax year Subtractline 4 from line 1 If zero orless, enter-0- If married
filing separately, see Instructions

500,000

2,000,000

HIWIN|=

(b) Cost (business use

6 (a) Description of property only)

(c) Elected cost

7 Listed property Enter the amount from line 29 | 7 |

8 Total elected cost of section 179 property Add amounts in column (c), lines 6 and 7
9 Tentative deduction Enter the smaller of ine 5 or line 8
10 Carryover of disallowed deduction from line 13 of your 2011 Form 4562
11 Business income limitation Enter the smaller of business income (not less than zero) orline 5 (see
instructions)

12 Section 179 expense deduction Add lines 9 and 10, but do not enter more than line 11

10

11

12

13 Carryover of disallowed deductionto 2013 Add lines 9 and 10, less line 12 | 13 |

Note: Do not use Part II or Part III below for listed property. Instead, use Part V.

Special Depreciation Allowance and Other Depreciation (Do not include listed property ) (See instructions )

14 Special depreciation allowance for qualified property (other than listed property) placed In service during

the tax year (see Instructions) 14
15 Property subject to section 168(f)(1) election 15
16 Other depreciation (including ACRS) . 16 204,395
m MACRS Depreciation (Do not include listed property. ) (See instructions. )
Section A
17 MACRS deductions for assets placed In service In tax years beginning before 2012 - 17 | 14,769

18 Ifyou are electing to group any assets placed in service during the tax year into one or more general
asset accounts, check here

w

Section B—Assets Placed in Serwce Durlng 2012 Tax Year Usmg the General Depreciation System

(c) Basis for
(a) Classification of glz)a:/l;Ir;E:hesr:: (busﬁiz"se/(l:r:a\llzzrt]ment (d) Recovery (e) Convention (f) Method (g)Depreciation
property cervice use period deduction
only—see Instructions)
19a 3-year property
b 5-year property
c 7-year property
d 10-year property
e 15-year property
f 20-year property
g 25-year property 25 yrs S/L
h Residential rental 27 5 yrs MM S/L
property 27 5 yrs MM S/L
i Nonresidential real 39 yrs MM S/L
property MM S/L
Section C—Assets Placed in Service During 2012 Tax Year Using the Alternative Depreciation System
20a Class life S/L
b12-year 12 yrs S/L
c40-year 40 yrs MM S/L
Summary (see instructions)
21 Listed property Enter amount from line 28 21
22 Total. Add amounts from line 12, ines 14 through 17, lines 19 and 20 in column (g), and line 21 Enter
here and on the appropriate lines of your return Partnerships and S corporations—see instructions - 22 219,164
23 For assets shown above and placed in service during the current year, enter the
portion of the basis attributable to section 26 3A costs . . . . . . 23

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see separate instructions. Cat No 12906N

Form 4562 (2012)



Form 4562 (2012)

Page 2

entertainment, recreation, or amusement.)
Note:

Listed Property (Include automobiles, certain other vehicles, certain computers, and property used for

For any vehicle for which you are using the standard mileage rate or deducting lease expense,

complete only 24a, 24b, columns (a) through (c) of Section A, all of Section B, and Section C if applicable.

Section A—Depreciation and Other Information (Caution: See the instructions for limits for passenger automobiles.)

24a Do you have evidence to support the business/investment use claimed?

I_Ys I_No

24b If "Yes," 1s the evidence wrntten? I_Yes I_ No

(a) (b) Bus(lﬁgss/ (d) (e) ()] (9) (h) @
Type of property (list |Date placed in| investment Cost or other Basis for depreciation Recovery| Method/ Depreciation/ Elected
(business/investment section 179
vehicles first) service use basis perod Convention deduction
use only) cost
percentage
25Special depreciation allowance for qualified listed property placed In service during the tax year and used more than
50% In a qualified business use (see Instructions) 25
26 Property used more than 50% 1n a qualified business use
%
%
%
27 Property used 50% or less In a qualified business use
% S/L -
% S/L -
% S/L -
28 Add amounts in column (h), lines 25 through 27 Enter here and on line 21, page 1 | 28 |
29 Add amounts in column (1), ine 26 Enter here and on line 7, page 1 . . . . 29
Section B—Information on Use of Vehicles
Complete this section for vehicles used by a sole proprietor, partner, or other "more than 5% owner," or related person
If you provided vehicles to your employees, first answer the questions in Section C to see If you meet an exception to completing this section for those vehicles
(a) (b) (o) (d) (e) (f)
30 Total business/investment miles driven during the Vehicle 1 Vehicle 2 Vehicle 3 Vehicle 4 Vehicle 5 Vehicle 6
year (do not include commuting miles)
31 Total commuting miles driven during the year
32 Total other personal(noncommuting) miles driven
33 Total miles driven during the year Add lines 30
through 32 . . . . . . .
34 Was the vehicle available for personal use Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
during off-duty hours? . . . . .
35 Was the vehicle used primarily by a more than 5%
owner or related person? . . .
36 Is another vehicle available for personal use?

Section C—Questions for Employers Who Provide Vehicles for Use by Their Employees
Answer these questions to determine If you meet an exception to completing Section B for vehicles used by employees who are not more than

59% owners or related persons (see Instructions)

37 Do you maintain a written policy statement that prohibits all personal use of vehicles, including commuting, by your Yes No
employees?
38 Do you maintain a written policy statement that prohibits personal use of vehicles, except commuting, by your
employees? See the instructions for vehicles used by corporate officers, directors, or 1% or more owners
39 Do you treat all use of vehicles by employees as personal use?
40 Do you provide more than five vehicles to your employees, obtain information from your employees about the use of
vehicles, and retain the information received?
41 Do you meet the requirements concerning qualified automobile demonstration use? (See Instructions )
Note: If your answer to 37, 38,39,40,0r41 1s "Yes," do not complete Section B for the covered vehicles
m Amortization
(b) (e)
(a) Date (<) (d) Amortization )
Amortizable Code Amortization for
Description of costs amortization period or
amount section this year
begins percentage
42 Amortization of costs that begins during your 2012 tax year (see instructions)
43 Amortization of costs that began before your 2012 tax year 43
44 Total. Add amounts In column (f) See the instructions for where to report 44

Form 4562(2012)



lefile GRAPHIC print - DO NOT PROCESS | As Filed Data - | DLN: 93493259008773]

TY 2012 GeneralDependencySmall

Name: OX-BOW
3435 RUPPRECHT WAY
EIN: 38-1081760
]
Business Name or Person Name:
Taxpayer Identification Number:

Form, Line or Instruction
Reference:

Regulations Reference:
Description: PREPARER NOTE

Attachment Information: PART IV 30 - ARTWORK DONATED FOR SALE AT BENEFIT
AUCTIONS
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Name:

EIN:

Business Name or Person Name:
Taxpayer Identification Number:

Form, Line or Instruction
Reference:

Regulations Reference:
Description:
Attachment Information:

OX-BOW

3435 RUPPRECHT WAY
38-1081760

=

OUT OF BONUS DEPR-ALL PROP

YEAR ENDED: DECEMBER 31, 2012 38-1081760 OX-BOW 3435
RUPPRECHT WAY PO BOX 216 SAUGATUCK, MI 49453 ELECTING
OUT OF BONUS DEPRECIATION ALLOWANCE FOR ALL ELIGIBLE
DEPRECIABLE PROPERTY THE TAXPAYER ELECTS OUT OF FIRST-
YEAR BONUS DEPRECIATION ALLOWANCE UNDER IRC SECTION 168
(K) FOR ALL ELIGIBLE ASSET CLASSES OF DEPRECIABLE PROPERTY
ACQUIRED AFTER DECEMBER 31, 2007. THIS ELECTION APPLIES TO
ALL ELIGIBLE DEPRECIABLE PROPERTY PLACED IN SERVICE DURING
THE TAX YEAR.
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e
DELONG* BROWER'*

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS it FINANCIAL CONSULTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Holland, Michigan
Aprl 30, 2013

Board of Directors
Ox-Bow
Saugatuck, Michigan

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ox-Bow (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the
statements of financial position as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related statements of activities, cash
flows and functional expenses for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion
in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Ox-Bow, of Saugatuck, Michigan as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the changes in its net assets

and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

DELONG & BROWER, P C
{ 4
(Do mey ¢ Brocwe /e
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

238 Hoover Blvd ® Suite 10 ® Holland, MI 49423 = 616 396 0500 & FAX 616 31)6 4170 = 62 Center St. PO Box 301 @ Douglas, M1 49406 » 269 857 1884

www cpaholland com



OX-BOwW
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

ASSETS 2012 2011
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 298,026 $ 137,064
Accounts Receivable, net of allowance - 2,415
Contributions Receivable, net of non-current portion and allowances 117,418 105,220
Receivable From Related Party - 1,976
Inventory 5,085 4,728
Prepaid Expenses 17,154 26,897
Donated Land Held for Sale 245,000 535,800
Total Current Assets 682,683 814,100
PROPERTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT
Land, Buildings, and Improvements 6,142,705 6,130,055
Furniture and Equipment 467,185 455,000
Construction in Progress - 6,391
Total Property, Plant, and Equipment 6,609,890 6,591,446
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (1,556,178) (1,345,190)
Net Book Value 5,053,712 5,246,256
OTHER ASSETS
Investments 1,901,186 1,836,508
Contributions Receivable, net of current portion and allowances 71,558 190,182
Artwork on Display 61,494 31,494
Total Other Assets 2,034,238 2,058,184
TOTAL ASSETS $7,770,633 $8,118,540




LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS 2012 2011

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable $ 23,070 $ 36,735
Payable to a Related Party 150,872 -
Current Portion of Long-term Debt 537,389 75,000
Current Portion of Capital Lease Obligation 289 182
Short-Term Debt Payable - 90,000
Deferred Revenue 400 4,900
Accrued Wages, Payroll Withholdings, and Accruals 17,970 17,344

Total Current Liabilities 729,990 224,161

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Debt, net of current portion - 537,389
Capital Lease Obligation, net of current portion 344 632
Total Long-Term Liabilities 344 538,021

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted Net Assets 597,970 881,484
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets 5,798,101 5,830,646
Permanently Restricted Net Assets 644,228 644,228
Total Net Assets 7,040,299 7,356,358
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $7,770,633 $ 8,118,540

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
2



OX-BOW
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

(MEMO)
TEMPORARILY PERMANENTLY 2012 2011
UNRESTRICTED RESTRICTED RESTRICTED TOTAL TOTAL

REVENUE & SUPPORT
Program Revenue
Tuition & Drop Fees $ 817,627 $ - $ - $ 817627 $ 771,434
Lab Fees 26,600 - - 26,600 29,200
Room & Board 303,944 - - 303,944 287,100
Residency 28,325 - - 28,325 29,225
Art on the Meadow 18,645 - - 18,645 14,920

Total Program Revenue 1,195,141 - - 1,195,141 1,131,879
Developmental Support
Alumni Membership 225 - - 225 2,175
Annual Fund Contributions 42,280 - - 42,280 38,600
General Donations & Grants 7,456 42,580 - 50,036 65,237
Non-Cash Contributions 30,000 - - 30,000 -
Benefits, Net 73,778 - - 73,778 107,320
Scholarship Contributions - 71,115 - 71,115 57,143
Fellowship and Scholarship - - - - 13,208
Residency Grants & Contributions - 33,000 - 33,000 26,410
SAIC Sponsorship 100,000 - - 100,000 60,000
Capital & Campaign Contributions - 36,129 - 36,129 23,379
Loss on Sale of Land Held for Sale (19,900) - - (19,900) -

Total Developmental Support 233,839 182,824 - 416,663 393,472
Other Revenue
Retail Revenue, Net 680 - - 680 490
Facility Rental & Supporting Services 60,805 - - 60,805 49,985
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets (402) - - (402) -
insurance Settlement - - - - 7,329
Unrealized Loss on Land Held for Sale (190,900) - - (190,900) -
Realized Gain on Investments 18 6,907 4,226 11,151 38,678
Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Investments 941 63,189 37,667 101,797 (92,444)
Interest and Dividends 444 25,237 15,388 41,069 33,539
Less. Investment Fees (58) (11,485) (6,997) (18,540) (15,649)

Total Other Revenue (128,472) 83,848 50,284 5,660 21,928
Net Assets Released from Restrictions 349,501 (299,217) (50,284) - -
TOTAL REVENUE & SUPPORT 1,650,009 (32,545) - 1,617,464 1,547,279
EXPENSES
Program Expenses 1,632,223 - - 1,532,223 1,498,467
Supporting Services 257,322 - - 257,322 224,126
Fundraising 143,978 - - 143,978 170,971
TOTAL EXPENSES 1,933,523 - - 1,933,523 1,893,564
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (283,515) (32,545) - (316,060) (346,285)
NET ASSETS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 881,484 5,830,646 644,228 7,356,358 7,702,643
NET ASSETS - END OF YEAR $ 597,970 $ 5,798,101 § 644,228 $7,040,299 $7,356,358

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements
3



OoX-Bow
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

2012 2011
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change In Net Assets $ (316,060) $ (346,285)
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets
to Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities.
Depreciation and Amortization 219,169 215,809
Unrealized Loss on Land Held for Sale 190,900
Unrealized (Gain) Loss on Investments (101,797) 92,444
Realized (Gain) on Sale of Investments (11,151) (38,678)
Noncash Contributions Received (30,000) -
Loss on Disposal of Assets 20,302 -
Decrease (Increase) in.
Receivables 110,817 537,543
Inventory (357) 3,888
Prepaid Expenses 9,743 (3,416)
Increase (Decrease) in'
Accounts Payable (13,665) 8,890
Payable to a Related Party 150,872 (85,878)
Deferred Revenue (4,500) (66,200)
Payrolt Withholdings and Accruals 626 (1,924)
Insurance Settlement Advance - (7,329)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 224,900 308,864
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from Sale of Investments 348,780 396,652

Proceeds from Sale of Equipment 100 -

Proceeds from Sale of Art Work on Display - 500

Proceeds from Sale of Donated Real Estate 80,000 -

Purchase of Property, Plant, and Equipment (27,126) (43,204)

Purchase of Investments (300,510) (795,961)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) INVESTING ACTIVITIES 101,244 (442,013)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Borrowing on Line of Credit - 90,000

Repayment on Line of Credit (90,000)

Repayment on Long-term Debt (75,182) (37,615)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) FINANCING ACTIVITIES (165,182) 52,385
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 160,962 (80,764)
CASH AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 137,064 217,828
CASH AT END OF PERIOD $ 208,026 $ 137,064

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
4



OX-BOW
STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

(MEMO)
SUPPORTING FUND- 2012 2011

PROGRAM SERVICES RAISING TOTAL TOTAL
Program Expense
Faculty & Visiting Artists Contracted $ 125862 $ - % - $ 125862 $ 116,489
Campus Wages 234,252 19,701 - 253,953 236,501
Other Contracted Services 1,665 75 300 2,040 11,775
Campus Payroll Taxes 19,851 1,700 - 21,551 20,674
Campus Employee Benefits 19,896 2,814 - 22,710 19,950
Faculty & Visiting Artists Travel 14,621 - - 14,621 18,960
Scholarships 141,354 - - 141,354 116,463
SAIC Financial Aid & Fees 118,006 - - 118,006 119,579
Work Study Scholarships 70,480 - - 70,480 70,965
Residency Scholarships & Stipends 23,840 - - 23,840 24,660
Campus Utilities 67,785 - - 67,785 71,568
Instructional Supplies & Equipment 34,813 - - 34,813 36,354
Campus Furniture & Equipment,

Repairs & Maintenance 48,670 - 145 48,815 35,071
Direct Marketing 44,299 - - 44,299 69,053
Insurance 28,639 5,875 3,623 38,037 39,842
Campus Food & Kitchen Supplies 108,081 2,170 - 110,251 94,203
Community Programming & Contributions 175 10,150 426 10,751 3,620
Bad Debt Expense 1,781 - (1,335) 446 (10,766)

Total Program Expense 1,104,070 42,485 3,059 1,149,614 1,094,961
Development Expense
Direct Fund Development - - 5,737 5,737 10,453
Administrative Expense
Administrative Wages 109,355 94,115 80,957 284,427 325,620
Administrative Payroll Taxes 9,642 8,071 7,561 25,274 26,097
Administrative Employee Benefits 18,321 14,759 14,452 47,532 42,480
Professional Services - 24,446 11,533 35,979 33,287
Staff Travel and Mileage 12,823 5,688 4,782 23,293 28,171
Auto Lease and Insurance 7,441 6,876 1,708 16,025 16,945
Insurance - Directors and Officers - 2,715 - 2,715 2,469
Telephone & Computer Charges 10,855 42,083 5,810 58,748 17,200
Office Expense 6,613 4,091 3,283 13,987 16,010
Bank & Credit Card Charges 5,538 1,551 4,357 11,446 11,905
Miscellaneous ) 5,033 7,087 739 12,859 16,058

Total Administrative Expense 185,621 211,482 135,182 532,285 536,242
Interest Expense 24,246 2,472 - 26,718 36,099
Depreciation 218,286 883 - 219,169 215,809
TOTAL EXPENSES $1,5632223 $ 257,322 $ 143,978 $1,933,523 $ 1,893,564

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements

5



OX-BOW
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

1) NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

Ox-Bow conducts a school of the aris offering degree and non-degree courses. It also provides
life-long learning opportunities within the surrounding community. Student artists are provided
with a studio, housing, dining facilities and an environment that nurtures the creative process.

2)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

b)

d)

9)
h)

)

The financial statements of Ox-Bow have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment in excess of $ 500 are capitalized. Property,
plant and equipment acquired after 1996 are carried at cost or, if donated, at the
approximate fair value at the date of donation. Since detailed records of the cost of assets
acquired prior to 1997 were not kept, on December 31, 1996 those assets were recorded at
their estimated cost and depreciation commenced on that date. For both financial reporting
and income tax purposes, depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the
useful lives of the assets.

Artwork on display that had been received as a gift prior to 2000 has not been recorded in
the statement of financial position. Artwork acquired in 2000 and thereafter is recorded at
cost. Donated artwork is recorded at its fair value on the date received.

The Organization classifies net assets into three categories for accounting and reporting
purposes — unrestricted, temporarily restricted or permanently restricted. Unrestricted net
assets are not subject to specific donor-imposed restrictions and may be used as the
Organization sees fit in furtherance of its missions. Temporarily restricted net assets carry
specific donor-imposed restrictions on the expenditure or other use of contributed funds.
Temporary restrictions may expire either because of the passage of time or because the
restriction was fulfilled. When temporary restrictions have been satisfied they are reported
as released from restrictions. Permanently restricted net assets are those subject to donor-
imposed restrictions that will never lapse, thus requiring the assets to be maintained
permanently as endowed funds.

Inventories of school and art supplies are stated at the lower of cost or market.

A number of volunteers have donated time to the Organization’s program, special events
and supporting services. The value of the contributed services meeting the criteria for
recognition under FASB Accounting Standards Codification 605, Revenue Recognition was
not material and therefore has not been reflected in the financial statements.

Functional expenses have been allocated between program services, supporting services
and fundraising based on specific identification and management estimates.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
judgments that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying
notes. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers all highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less to be cash equivalents.



OX-BOW
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

2) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3)

)

k)

1)

Investments in equity and debt securities are carried at fair value based upon quoted market
prices. Investments are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, credit and overall
market volatility. It is possible that changes in the value of investment securities could
materially change in the near term and affect amounts reported in the financial statements.
The Organization maintains cash deposits at financial institutions which at times may
exceed FDIC limits. The Organization has not experienced any losses on such accounts
and believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalents.
The carrying amounts of receivables and payables approximate fair value because of the
short-term maturity of those instruments.

m) The Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Accounting Standards Codification 958,

Not-for-Profit Entities. Under FASB ASC 958, net asset classification of donor-restricted
endowment funds are subject to an enacted version of the Uniform Prudent Management of
Institutional Funds Act of 2006 (UPMIFA). It also improves disclosures about endowment
funds. The State of Michigan adopted UPMIFA September 10, 2009.

The Organization has a policy to record all known asset retirement obligations when the fair
value of the liability can be estimated. At year-end, there were no legal obligations to
perform an asset retirement activity.

The Organization does not record the fair market value of non-cash inventory contributed
that is subsequently sold at fundraising auctions, except for the amount of art inventory held
at previous fiscal year-end or in the collection with the amount previously recorded as a gift-
in-kind contribution. If these donations had been recorded, contribution revenue and the
related cost of goods sold reflected in these statements would both have been $97,054
higher.

TAX-EXEMPT ORGANIZATION

The Organization is exempt from federal income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section
501(c)(3). However, income from certain activities not directly related to the Organization’s tax-
exempt purposes may be subject to taxation as unrelated business income. For the years
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, no income was subject to taxation. In addition, the
Organization qualified for the charitable contribution deduction under Section 170(b)(1)(A) and
has been classified as an organization that is not a private foundation under 509(a)(2).



OX-BOW

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

4) PROPERTY, PLANT, EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION

A breakdown of fixed assets as of December 31, 2012 was as follows:

Accum. Net Book
Cost Deprec./Amort. Value
Land $ 26,800 $ - 8 26,800
Buildings & Improvements 6,115,905 1,239,984 4,875,921
Furniture & Equipment 444 434 299,126 145,308
Software 21,767 16,545 5,222
Capital Lease 984 523 461
Total $ 6,609,890 $ 1,556,178 $ 5,053,712

A breakdown of fixed assets as of December 31, 2011 was as follows:

Accum. Net Book
Cost Deprec./Amort. Value
Land $ 26,800 $ - % 26,800
Buildings & Improvements 6,103,255 1,068,792 5,034,463
Furniture & Equipment 435,749 263,688 172,061
Software 18,267 12,433 5,834
Construction in Progress 6,391 - 6,391
Capital Lease 984 277 707
Total $ 6591446 $ 1345190 $ 5,246,256

Total depreciation and amortization expense recognized for the years ended December 31,
2012 and 2011 was $ 219,169 and $ 215,809, respectively.

5) DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue for the year ended December 31, 2012 consists of pre-payment of
participants fees for 2013 Ceramics workshop in advance of the event. Deferred revenue for
the year ended December 31, 2011 consisted of winter benefit tickets sold in advance of the

event.



OX-BOW
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

6) CONTRIBUTIONS RECEIVABLE

7)

Unconditional promises to give at December 31, 2012 and 2011, which are net of the allowance
for uncollectible contributions and discounted to present value, were as follows:

2012 2011

Capital Improvement and Campus Maintenance $ 157,671 $ 281,323
Scholarship Contributions 21,255 7,621
Annual Fund & Other Unrestricted 10,050 4,958
Grant Payments Receivable - 1,500
Total $ 188,976 $ 295402
Collectible in the Following Periods:

Year One $ 117,418 $ 105,220
Year Two 61,811 78,092
Year Three 4,334 40,418
Year Four 1,608 35,650
Year Five and Thereafter 3,805 36,002
Total $ 188976 $ 295,382

Management has evaluated the need for both an allowance for uncollectible contributions and a
discount to present value. Risk factors including the inherent nature of the promises to give,
consideration of the specific donors, and timing of the anticipated payments were considered
when establishing the allowance and calculating the discount to present value. The allowance
for uncollectible contributions was established in the amount of $ 500 and $ 3,931 at December
31,2012 and 2011, respectively. At 12/31/2012, a discount to present value was established at
5.5%, for a total of $ 9,339. During 2011, a discount to present value was established at 5.5%,
for a total of $ 35,969.

Conditional promises to give consist of donations in the amount of $ 190,000 that are payable
to the Organization upon the donors’ deaths. In addition, a donor has pledged a percentage of
the proceeds of the sale of a specific piece of real estate to be sold upon his death, however,
no estimate of the value of this donation is currently available. Conditional promises are not
recorded in the financial records.

TERMINATED SPONSORSHIP & NEW STRATEGIC ALLIANCE

On April 1, 1995, The Art Institute of Chicago (AIC) agreed to sponsor Ox-Bow by providing

sufficient funding each year to satisfy each of Ox-Bow's reasonable and necessary expenses

for the following:

a) Continued annual operation of art programs on Ox-Bow properties in a manner and scope
at least equivalent to the level of programming previously provided in the community.

b) Repair and maintenance of the facilities to keep them in a safe condition in compliance with
Ox-Bow's mission and all applicable building codes, ordinances and insurance
requirements, including deferred maintenance of the facilities.

9



OX-BOW
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

7) TERMINATED SPONSORSHIP & NEW STRATEGIC ALLIANCE (CONTINUED)

c) Development and implementation of a comprehensive advancement plan for Ox-Bow,
including annual fund-raising activities, mailing list development, corporate and foundation
relations, governmental relations, alumni affairs, major gifts, capital campaign and public
relations.

As part of the agreement, Ox-Bow agreed to maintain all risk, comprehensive public liability and
property damage insurance. Per the agreement AIC was able to appoint, approve and/or
remove Ox-Bow's Board members. That right was not exercised in the five years prior to
termination.

This sponsorship agreement in place at December 31, 2011, and June 30, 2012 terminated on
July 1, 2012 when School of the Art Institute Chicago and Ox-Bow signed a Termination of
Sponsorship Agreement so that Ox-Bow and SAIC could enter a new Strategic Alliance
Agreement, which became effective July 1, 2012.

Key provisions of the new agreement are as follows:

a)

g)
h)

Term of the agreement is 99 years. If either party decides to terminate the agreement
prematurely they could face sanctions of up to $ 1,000,000 for Ox-Bow and $ 500,000
for SAIC. The parties have the right and obligation to review the financial obligations
and provisions of the agreement and to make mutually agreed upon modifications.
Pre-approved courses offered by Ox-Bow will qualify for student credit from SAIC,
assuming they are taught by faculty pre-approved by SAIC. Ox-Bow agrees not to make
a similar arrangement with other colleges.

SAIC will continue to provide registration, billing & collections services for For-Credit
courses offered by Ox-Bow and to provide office space to Ox-Bow at their Chicago
facility. In exchange, SAIC will charge an administrative fee of $ 40,000 and request
reimbursement for services used by Ox-Bow. Fees may be increased in the future.
SAIC will appoint two persons to the Ox-Bow board.

SAIC agrees to contribute $ 100,000 to Ox-Bow for 2012. The contribution will be
increased annually based upon an approved formula.

Ox-Bow tuition cost and fees will be set by SAIC and equivalent to what SAIC's charges
their students. Ox-Bow will establish room and board fees. Financial aid or discounts
may be extended to students by either party based upon restrictions identified in the
agreement.

Amounts collected by SAIC on behalf of Ox-Bow will be forwarded to Ox-Bow according
to a pre-approved installment schedule.

The agreement identifies both SAIC and Ox-Bow as independent contractors and not
partners or joint ventures or agents of one another.

The Art Institute of Chicago has provided $ 100,000 of direct sponsorship to Ox-Bow in 2012
and $ 60,000 in direct sponsorship in 2011.

10



8)

9)

OX-BOW
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid for interest for the year ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, was $ 27,389 and
$ 36,225, respectively.

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets were increased by restricted giving for scholarships and
campus improvements, grants for Residency Programming; and, by one contribution restricted
for marketing and one restricted for use in fiscal year 2013. Investment gains on Endowment
Funds also increased temporarily restricted net assets. Net assets were released from donor
restrictions during the year by recognizing depreciation on long-lived assets, incurring
expenditures related to the construction or purchase of facilities and equipment, the awarding of
scholarships, and payment of summer fellows’ wages and related payroll taxes. Temporarily
restricted net assets were also increased and released from donor restrictions by a grant for,
and expenses incurred by, the community programs run on campus in 2012. Net assets were
temporarily restricted for the following purposes at December 31:

2012 2011

Long-lived assets from temporarily restricted contributions $ 4,456,604 $ 4,605,499
Residency program 54,713 46,256
Summer Fellows payroll expenses and student

scholarships 1,048,670 1,007,336
Student scholarships 156,139 150,295
General Contributions Restricted for Purpose or Time 2,000 -
Campus maintenance, improvements or scholarships

net of Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts Receivable 4,500 (3,931)
Investment gains restricted for campus improvements and

student scholarships 75,475 25,191
Total Temporarily Restricted Net Assets $ 5,798,101 $ 5,830,646

11



OX-BOW
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

10)TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Art Institute of Chicago (AIC) provides sponsorship (see note 7) and performs a number of
services for Ox-Bow. They collect tuition, fees and room and board of students who will receive
credit for their classes. They provide an accounting by student of all charges, scholarships and
financial aid awards. They age student receivables and provide both short and long-term
financing. They also provide office space and IT support for staff working in the Chicago office.
In return, Ox-Bow paid AIC an administrative fee of $ 40,000 for Ox-Bow fiscal year 2012 under
the terms of the Strategic Alliance Agreement effective July 1, 2012. Ox-Bow also reimbursed
AIC for actual costs incurred by the Chicago office for postage, copy services, telephone, and
new computer equipment. Ox-Bow accepted financial aid awarded to credit students by AIC.
The total amounts paid to AIC for services and reimbursements during 2012 and 2011 were
$ 168,976 and $ 129,237, respectively.

AIC was in a position to exert control over Ox-Bow through June 30, 2012. As a result AIC
prepared financial statements on a consolidated basis with Ox-Bow utilizing AIC’s fiscal year
end of June 30. A summary of AIC’s financial information for the years ended June 30, 2012
and June 30, 2011, respectively, follows (in thousands).

2012 2011
Assets $ 1,359,576 $ 1,423,042
Liabilities (396,545) (409,082)
Net Assets $ 963,031 $ 1,013,960
Operating Revenue $ 231,380 $ 245,757
Expenses (211,334) (209,959)
Nonoperating Revenue & (Expenses) (70,975) 123,453
Change in Net Assets $ (60,929) $§ 159,251

As a number of Ox-Bow's Board members are associated with AIC, the Organization put a
conflict of interest policy in place that requires all Board members and staff to act in the best
interests of Ox-Bow without regard to their personal interests. All conflicts of interest must be
disclosed. Board members who have a conflict of interest may not vote on, approve or
recommend action in any matter involving the conflict of interest.

11) CONCENTRATION OF RISK
The Organization maintains its bank deposit and money market accounts at financial
institutions and brokerage firms. The balances, at times, may exceed insured limits. As of
December 31, 2012 the uninsured balances in bank and brokerage accounts were $ 3,606 and
$ 188,399, respectively. In addition, $ 1,712,787 was held in uninsured marketable securities.
As of December 31, 2011 the uninsured balances in bank and brokerage accounts were $ 0

and $ 370,392, respectively. $ 1,466,115 was held in uninsured marketable securities and
certificates of deposit.

12



OX-BOW
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

12) INDIRECT FINANCIAL SUPPORT
A number of individuals in the past have donated large sums of money to the Art Institute of
Chicago (AIC) with the express intent that the funds, or the investment earnings thereon, be
used exclusively to help AIC support Ox-Bow specifically through facility improvement or
expansion, repair and maintenance or by providing scholarships for Ox-Bow students. These
funds are invested and earnings thereon are available to Ox-Bow in accordance with AIC's
investment and spending policy.

13) ADVERTISING
The Organization expenses marketing costs as they are incurred. Direct marketing expense
for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 was $ 44,299 and $ 69,053, respectively.

14) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Land use and interpretation of donor restrictions placed on contributions are reviewed
periodically. At this time management does not foresee any potential liabilities arising from
these issues.

The Organization has a commitment to enter into a building project to extend the roofing of the
current Ceramics Studio area to cover the outdoor area of the studio and the kilns and wood
storage currently exposed. As of December 31, 2012 no work on the project had taken place.
It is expected to be completed in 2013 and be funded by one donor. Ox-Bow held $ 5,000 in
temporarily restricted contributions from this donor for the project at December 31, 2012. In
March 2013, Ox-Bow received an Additional $ 3,000 from same donor to fund this capital
project. The expected total cost for project is approximately $ 10,000.

15) RETIREMENT PLAN
The Organization has a 401(k) retirement plan. Eligible employees, with one year of service,
may contribute to the plan with pre-tax salary deferrals. In addition, the Organization may
make a discretionary contribution on behalf of the employees. For the years ended December
31, 2012 and 2011, Ox-Bow made employer contributions of $ 13,636 and $ 13,280,
respectively. Retirement costs including administrative fees for this same period were
$ 14,566 and $ 14,325, respectively.

13



OX-BOW
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

16) INVESTMENTS
The Organization carries investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair
values in the Statement of Financial Position. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the

change in net assets in the accompanying Statement of Activities. Investments as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011 are summarized as follows:

For the year ended December 31, 2012:

Carrying
Cost Fair Value Value

Unrestricted:

Equity Securities $ 3,067 $ 4,018 $ 4,018
Fixed Income Securities 973 970 970
Cash Equivalents 308 308 308
Total Unrestricted 4,348 5,296 5,296
Temporarily Restricted:

Equity Securities 626,637 736,126 736,126
Fixed Income Securities 392,629 391,359 391,358
Cash Equivalents 124,178 124 177 124,178
Total Temporarily Restricted 1,143,444 1,251,662 1,251,662
Permanently Restricted:

Equity Securities 322,529 378,883 378,883
Fixed Income Securities 202,085 201,431 201,431
Cash Equivalents 63,914 63,914 63,914
Total Permanently Restricted 588,528 644,228 644,228
Grand Total $ 1,736,320 $ 1,901,186 $ 1,901,186

The following schedule summarizes the investment return and its classification in the
statement of activities for the year ended December 31, 2012:

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted  Restricted Restricted Total

Interest and dividends $ 139 $ 25237 $ 15388 $ 40,763
Realized gains 18 6,907 4226 11,152
Unrealized gains/(losses) 941 63,189 37,667 101,797
Total investment return $ 1098 $ 95332 $ 57,281 $ 153,712

Investment interest and dividends of $ 40,673 from the schedule above plus bank interest
totals $ 41,069.

14



OX-BOW
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

16) INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

An annual total of $ 18,540 in Investment Fees were deducted from the Organization’s major
Investment account and allocated along with other gains and losses among restricted and
unrestricted funds in the account. Taking these fees into consideration, the Net investment
returns in 2012 were $ 1,041, $ 83,847, and $ 50,284 for Unrestricted, Temporarily Restricted,
and Permanently Restricted, respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2011:

Carrying
Cost Fair Value Value

Unrestricted:

Equity Securities $ 6,721 $ 7,268 $ 7,268
Fixed Income Securities 4,439 4,438 4,438
Cash Equivalents 2,549 2,549 2,549
Total Unrestricted 13,709 14,255 14,255
Temporarily Restricted:

Equity Securities 485,760 526,215 526,215
Fixed Income Securities 414,085 414,012 414,012
Cash Equivalents 237,798 237,798 237,798
Total Temporarily Restricted 1,137,643 1,178,025 1,178,025
Permanently Restricted:

Equity Securities 265,648 287,772 287,772
Fixed Income Securities 226,451 226,411 226,411
Cash Equivalents 130,045 130,045 130,045
Total Permanently Restricted 622,144 644,228 644,228
Grand Total $ 1,773,496 $ 1,836,508 $ 1,836,508

The following schedule summarizes the investment return and its classification in the
statement of activities for the year ended December 31, 2011:

Unrestricted  Restricted Restricted Total

Interest and dividends $ 302 $ 18398 $ 13972 $ 32672
Realized gains 339 20,382 17,957 38,678
Unrealized gains (losses) (1,010) (56,760) (34,674) (92,444)
Total investment return ~ § (369) $ (17980) § (2,745 § (21,094)

Investment interest and dividends of $ 32,672 from the schedule above plus bank interest
totals $ 33,539.
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OX-BOwW
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

16) INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

17)

An annual total of $ 15,649 in Investment Fees were deducted from the Organization’s major
Investment account and allocated along with other gains and losses among restricted and
unrestricted funds in the account. Taking these fees into consideration, the Net investment

returns in 2011 were $ (467), $(26,714), and $ (9,532) for Unrestricted, Temporarily
Restricted, and Permanently Restricted, respectively.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Organization in estimating its fair
value disclosures for financial instruments:
e Cash and cash equivalents: The carrying amounts reported in the statement of
financial position represent fair values. These instruments have short maturities.
¢ Short-term and endowment investments: The fair values of investments are based on
quoted market prices for those or similar investments.

The estimated fair values of the Organization’s financial instruments for the year ended
December 31, 2012 are as follows:

Cost Value Value

Financial Assets: 12/31/2012 12/31/2012 12/31/2012
Greenleaf Trust:

Equity Investments $ 950,719 $ 1,116,834 $ 1,116,834
Fixed Income 595,688 593,760 593,760
Cash & Cash Equivalents 188,399 188,399 188,399
Mellon Investors:
Equity Investments 1,514 2,193 2,193

Totals $ 1,736,320 $ 1,901,186 $ 1,901,186
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OX-BOW
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

17) FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
The estimated fair values of the Organization’s financial instruments for the year ended
December 31, 2011 are as follows:

Fair Market Carrying
Cost Value Value

Financial Assets: 12/31/2011 12/31/2011 12/31/2011
Greenleaf Trust:
Equity Investments $ 756,615 $ 819,628 $ 819,628
Fixed Income 994,975 594,861 594,861
Certificate of Deposit 50,000 50,000 50,000
Cash & Cash Equivalents 370,392 370,392 370,392
Mellon Investors:
Equity Investments 1,514 1,627 1,627

Totals $ 1,773,496 $ 1,836,508 $ 1,836,508

Fair Value Measurements

In accordance with authoritative guidance on fair value measurements and disclosures under
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), Ox-Bow discloses the fair value of its
investments in a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure
fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are

as follows:
Level 1 — inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical

investments that Ox-Bow has the ability to access at the measurement date.

Level 2 — quoted prices in markets that are not considered to be active or financial
instruments for which all significant inputs are observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 — significant unobservable inputs which may include an organization’s own
assumptions in determining fair value.

The table on the following page presents Ox-Bow's fair value hierarchy for the financial assets
measured at fair value on a recurring basis:
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OX-BOW
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

17) FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2012 using:

Quoted Prices
In Active Markets
For Identical Assets

Fair Value (Level 1)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 188,399 $ 188,399
Short-term investments 2,193 2,193
Long-term investments 1,710,594 1,710,594

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2011 using:

Quoted Prices
In Active Markets
For Identical Assets

Fair Value (Level 1)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 370,392 $ 370,392
Short-term investments 1,627 1,627
Long-term investments 1,464,489 1,464,489

18) PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS & ENDOWMENT
Permanently restricted net assets consist of one endowed fund that originated from a
restricted donation. With the adoption of UPMIFA, the amount reported as permanently
restricted endowed net assets were adjusted as of December 31, 2009 to fair value and the
net investment returns on the underlying invested assets were subsequently reflected in
temporarily restricted net assets.

Return Objectives and Risk Parameters of Endowed Funds

The primary investment objective for the endowed funds is to provide for long-term growth
of principal without undue exposure to risk. Therefore, the primary focus is on long-term
capital appreciation and income generation is a secondary concern.

Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives
Ox-Bow utilizes a diversified asset allocation strategy that places a greater emphasis on
equity-based investments to achieve its investment objectives.
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OX-BOW
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

18) PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS & ENDOWMENT (CONTINUED)
Management and the Finance Committee Chair understand that UPMIFA is in place and
that the Organization needs to be in compliance with its requirements and guidelines. The
Organization believes that they fall within these guidelines based on the key factors that
inform the spending policy and the percentage allowed by the spending policy. Ox-Bow's
spending policy states that the Organization may spend up to five percent of its endowment
funds average fair market value based on the previous four quarters. This is two
percentage points lower than the threshold of seven percent established by UPMIFA.
Additionally, while Ox-Bow’s spending policy allows for spending into the historical dollar
value of a particular fund, Ox-Bow's finance committee and Board manage funds, so that
funds maintain the support of the Organization. Moreover, Ox-Bow's guiding principle when
dealing with donor designated funds is to follow donor intent. While many donors use the
term endowment, Ox-Bow understands that their desire is for immediate distributions to be
made per their designation. The key factors used in evaluating the spending and
distribution of any particular gift include:

The mission of the Organization

The purpose of the fund as defined by the donor

General economic conditions

The need of potential students and campus requirements

The expected total return from income and appreciation of investments
Other resources of the Organization

The investment policy

In cases where Ox-Bow designates donor restricted funds to function as endowments, they
are classified as temporarily restricted net assets, and in cases where a donor refers to their
contribution as an endowment, but in accordance with Ox-Bow's spending policy agrees
that it may fall below the historical gift value, it is classified as temporarily restricted.

The Board, in interpreting the intent of the endowment gift from Metternich, determined that
distributions in any year are limited to the sum of the fund’'s net earnings on investments
plus net capital gains for the year. Up to 50% of the fund distributions in a given fiscal year
may be applied to maintenance and improvements of Ox-Bow's Saugatuck, Michigan
campus. The balance of that year’s distributions are applied to scholarships, grants, and
other financial assistance to students and artists participating in Ox-Bow’s educational
programs as Ox-Bow's governing Board shall choose in its sole discretion. The gift from
Metternich is classified as permanently restricted and presented at Fair Market Value per
adoption of UPMIFA.
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OX-BOW
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

18) PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS & ENDOWMENT (CONTINUED)
Endowment Net Asset Composition by Type of Fund at December 31, 2012

Temporarily  Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Donor-Restricted for Purpose and
Principal Restriction Endowment  § - $ - $ 644228 § 644,228
Donor-Restricted for Purpose and

as Term Endowment - 1,210,598 - 1,210,598
Donor-Restricted for Purpose and

Board Designated as Term

Endowment - 41,615 - 41,615

Board Designated as Endowment
from Unrestricted -

Total Funds $ $1,252213 $§ 644,228 $ 1,896,441

Endowment Net Asset Composition by Type of Fund at December 31, 2011

Donor-Restricted for Purpose and
Principal Restriction Endowment  $ - $ - $ 644228 $ 644,228
Donor-Restricted for Purpose and

as Term Endowment - 1,116,629 - 1,116,629
Donor-Restricted for Purpose and

Board Designated as Term

Endowment - 41,143 - 41,143

Board-Designated as Endowment
from Unrestricted -

Total Funds $

$1,157772 § 644,228 $ 1,802,000
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OX-BOW
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

18) PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS & ENDOWMENT (CONTINUED)
Changes In Endowment Net Assets for the Year Ended December 31, 2012

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Endowment Net Assets, 1/1/12 $ - $1157,772 $ 644228 $ 1,802,000
Net Investment Return
On Endowed Net Assets - 83,267 50,284 133,550
Appropriations of Endowed Assets
Limited To Fund Earnings - 50,284 (50,284) -
Appropriation for Purpose - (39,110) - (39,110)

Contributions -
Adjustment and Transfers -

Total Endowed Net Assets at 12/31/12 $ $1,252212 $ 644228 $ 1,896,441

Changes In Endowment Net Assets for the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
Endowment Net Assets, 1/1/11 $ $ 738283 $ 644228 $ 1,382,511
Net Investment Return

On Endowed Net Assets - (26,507) (9,532) (36,039)
Appropriations of Endowed Assets

Limited To Fund Earnings (9,532) 9,532
Appropriation for Purpose - (44,472) - (44,472)
Contributions - 500,000 - 500,000

Total Endowed Net Assets at 12/31/11 $ $1,157,772 $ 644228 $ 1,802,000
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19) LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt consisted of the following at December 31:

Note payable to the Bank of Holland, with monthly payments of interest only, at 5.5%, and
semi-annual principal payments of $ 37,500. Payments were first required on July 10,
2011. A total of $ 37,500 was paid on the principal during 2011. The note matured and
then was refinanced on January 10, 2012 for $ 574,889 at an interest rate of 4.25%.

012 011
Total at December 31, $ 537,389 $ 612,389
Less Current Portion (537,389) (75,000)
Long-term Debt, net of current portion $ 0 $ 537,389

Maturities of long-term debt as calculated at December 31, 2012 are as follows:

December 31,
2013 $ 537,389
2014 -
2015 -
2016 -
2017 -
Thereafter -

In March 2013 the note was restructured. Monthly payments of principal and interest
began in April 2013 at $ 4,034 per month. The principal balance at time of restructure was

$ 499,899. An additional $ 25,000 was added to the note and the interest rate increased to
4.5%.

20) LINE OF CREDIT
The Organization had available a $ 50,000 unsecured bank line of credit with an interest rate
of 4.50% until August 24, 2011 when the line of credit was increase to $ 100,000. The balance

owed was $ 90,000 at December 31, 2011. The balance owed was $ 0 at December 31,
2012.

Interest expense on the line of credit was $ 2,126 and $ 500 for the years ended December
31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
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21) OPERATING AND CAPITAL LEASES
The Organization had an operating lease on a vehicle in the amount of $ 655 per month
that was scheduled to run until January of 2012. That lease was terminated early before the
end of 2011 and all termination fees were paid or accrued as lease expense in 2011. The
organization entered into a new lease on a different vehicle in October 2011. The monthly
payments were $ 671 per month and scheduled to run until October 2014. On October 1,
2012, when the total amount due for contractual payoff of the lease was $ 36,892, Ox-Bow
exchanged the vehicle and paid $ 2,892 to a dealership to assume the non-cancelable
operating lease. The total lease expense for 2012 and 2011 was $ 8,935 and $ 9,459,

respectively. At December 31, 2012 Ox-Bow has no liability on non-cancelable operating
leases.

The Organization has a capital lease agreement for a credit card machine that had an initial
fair market value of $ 984. The agreement requires 48 monthly instaliments of $ 44. At
December 31, 2012, future minimum lease payments under the capital lease were as

follows:
2013 $ 528
2014 418
2015 -
2016 -
2017 -
Total 946

Less: Amount representing interest (314)
Present value of future minimum

lease payments 632
Less: Current portion (288)
Long-term portion $ 344

Lease amortization expense for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 was $ 246
and $ 246, respectively.

22) SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated all subsequent events through April 30, 2013, the date the
financial statements were available to be issued.
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OX-BOW
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

UNCERTAIN TAX POSITIONS

The Organization evaluates its uncertain tax positions using the provisions of FASB
Accounting Standards Caodification 450, Contingencies (formerly Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 5, Accounting for Contingencies). Accordingly, a loss contingency
is recognized when it is probable that a liability has been incurred as of the date of the
financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The amount
recognized is subject to estimate and management judgment with respect to the likely
outcome of each uncertain tax position. The amount that is ultimately sustained for an
individual uncertain tax position or for all uncertain tax positions in the aggregate could
differ from the amount recognized. The Organization continually evaluates expiring
statutes of limitations, audits, proposed settlements, changes in tax law and new
authoritative rulings. No loss contingency has been recognized in these financial
statements.

ADJUSTMENTS AND TRANSFERS WITH NET ASSETS

Upon adoption of the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) on
September 10, 2009, the Organization began to reflect prior year declines in the fair value
of endowed assets in the restricted net assets accounts. They also reclassified certain
restricted net assets based on management’s interpretation of the law. The adjustments
and transfers are reflected in footnote 18. For additional information on the adoption of
UPMIFA see Note 2.

LAND DONATED FOR SALE

Ox-Bow received a donation of land located in Douglas, Michigan in April, 2010. The land
was valued by Ox-Bow at the proposed realtor listing price of $ 535,800. In 2012, one
parcel of the total donated land that had been carried at $ 99,900, was sold for $ 80,000.
After realtor commissions, title, closing fees, and transfer taxes were deducted, the
Organization received $ 72,774 on this sale.

An independent appraisal of the remaining parcel of contributed land held for sale was
conducted in 2012. When results of that appraisal were evaluated the Organization’s
Board of Directors voted to reduce the value of the property and its listing price down to fair
market value of $ 245,000. The real estate had been carried at $ 435,900.

Since real estate values are typically subject to market fluctuations, the actual selling price
may differ from this estimate. The factors used to determine this estimate have been
evaluated by management and the valuation has been determined to be materially
accurate as of December 31, 2012.
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26) FUNDRAISING ACTIVITIES
Ox-Bow holds two large auction style fundraisers and a few smaller auctions during the year.
ltems auctioned off consist of donated art and dinner parties. Total benefit proceeds include
both ticket and auction sales.

For the year-ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, benefit revenues and expenses were as

follows:
2012 2011
Benefit Proceeds $ 180,861 $ 215,969
Cost of Benefit (107,083) (108,649)
Benefits, Net $ 73,778 $ 107,320

Ox-Bow records the proceeds from the sale of donated items as auction sales. However, they
do not record as revenue the fair market value of donated fundraiser inventory that is
subsequently sold at one of the auctions. Had the donated inventory items been recorded as a
contribution when received and later as a cost of goods sold, then both benefit proceeds and
cost of the benefit would have been higher by approximately $ 97,074 for 2012 and $ 107,709
for 2011.

27) OX-SHOP, CAMPUS STORE
Store sales and expenses were as follows for the year ended December 31, 2012 and 2011.

2012 2011
Sales $ 2893 $ 3,753
Cost of Goods Sold (2,213) (3,263)
Gross Profit $ 680 $ 490

The Ox-Shop on campus exists primarily for the convenience of students who wish to
purchase art supplies for their use on campus. Any gross profit generated is only meant to
finance future inventory purchases or subsidize staffing expenses. The shop is not run to
generate a net profit.
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28) RECLASSIFICATION
Certain amounts shown on the financial statements for December 31, 2011 have been
reclassified to conform with the December 31, 2012 presentation in order to provide a more
meaningful basis for comparison.

26



